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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
INVESTMENT JOINT - STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom - Happiness

S6/NoD: J4L /DNC-TCKT

Dong Nai, day.% month¥ year 2025

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE
ON THE ELECTRONIC INFORMATION PORTAL
OF THE STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION
AND THE HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE

To: - The State Securities Commission;

- Hanoi Stock Exchange

I. Information of the disclosing organization

1. Name of organization: Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint — Stock
Company

2. Headquarters address: 138, Quarter I, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street, Trang Dai

Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province.

Stock symbol: DND

Trading platform: UPCOM

Phone: 02513 899 886 Fax: 02513 997 894

Email: tckt@vatlieudongnai.vn

Person responsible for information disclosure: Mr. Tran Anh Dien — Legal

Representative
8. Type of disclosed information:
[X] Periodic O Extraordinary [ 24h O Upon request

N v s W

II. Contents of the disclosed information:

Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint — Stock Company hereby discloses
information regarding the resolutions, minutes, and documents of the 2025 Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders.
This information has been published on the Dong Nai Material & Building
Investment Joint - Stock Company’s electronic information portal on date 44../04/2025 at

the link: http://www.vatlieudongnai.vn
We commit that the disclosed information mentioned above is true and accurate,

and we take full legal responsibility for the content disclosed.

Recipients:
- As addressed;
- Archived: Finance & Accounting Department, Files.

* Attachment
Resolution, minutes, and relevant documents

2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
No.: 91/NQ.DHDBCD-DNC Bien Hoa, day 13 month 4 year 2025
RESOLUTION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK
COMPANY

Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17th, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock
Company;,

Pursuant to the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai
Material & Building Investment Joint Stock Company convened on April 13, 2025.

RESOLUTIONS:

Article 1. The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai Material-— 502593,

& Building Investment Joint Stock Company has voted to approve the following matterz;'/v C/C;—C:;
el
S

1. Approval of Report No. 32/BC-DNC dated April 4, 2025, on the busi f%i}iﬁ
performance results for 2024 and the business plan for 2025, with the main contenl;s( van ATLl

follows: WA
AN
- 2024 Business Performance. \Q\i&_}_
. : %
No. Indicators Unit Plan Actual Actual/Plan
1 | Total revenue VND 93.192 97.263 104,37
2 | Net profit after tax VND 615 (7.072)
g .| SEEpAymERISIO e MAS | 34.000 43.948 1296
budget
4 Capltal construction VND 0 931
investment
- Business Plan for 2025.
No. Indicators Unit Plan
1 Total revenue VND 104.857
2 Net profit after tax VND 1.003
3 Tax payments to the state budget VND 38.700
4 Capital construction investment VND 4.620
2. Approval of Report No. 33/BC-DNC dated April 4, 2025, on the activities of the
Board of Directors in 2024 and the activity plan for 2025.
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3. Approval of the Supervisory Board’s report on the inspection and supervision of
the business operations of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint - Stock
Company in 2024, dated March 26, 2025.

4. Approval of the audited financial statements for 2024.

5. Approval of the Profit Distribution Plan for 2024 and the Profit Distribution Plan
for 2025.

- Profit Distribution Plan for 2024:

No. Items Rate Amount (VND)
1 2024 Net profit after tax (7.072)
2 | Allocation to reserves 0% 0

Transfer of remaining profit after tax for
: 2024 after fund allocations Gnlhas)
4 | Retained earnings from previous years (7.541)
5 Dividend distribution 0% 0
6 Retaln?d earnings carried forward to the (14.613)
following year
- Profit Distribution Plan for 2024.

No. Items Rate Amount (VND)

1 2024 Net profit after tax 1.003

2 Retained earnings from previous years (14.613)

3 Allocation to reserves 0% 0

4 Dividend distribution 0% 0

5 Retalnf:d earnings carried forward to the (13.610)
following year

6. Approval of Executive Compensation, Board of Directors’ Compensation,
Supervisory Board’s Compensation, and Secretary’s Compensation for 2024 and the Plan
for 2025:

6.1.Salaries and allowances for the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board, and
Board Secretary in 2024.

- Total salary of the full-time Chairman of the Board of Directors from January 2024
to April 2024 is VND 95.114.000.

- Total salary of the full-time Head of the Supervisory Board from April 2024 is
VND 208.945.000.

- Non-executive management compensation fund: 396.000.000 VND.

Plan Actual
(VND/person/month) | (VND/person/month)

No. Positions

Chairman of the Board of

1 Dteciops 5.000.000 5.000.000
2 Board of Directors Member 5.000.000 5.000.000
3 Head of Supervisory Board 5.000.000 5.000.000
e Supervisory Board Member 4.000.000 4.000.000
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Plan Actual
(VND/person/month) | (VND/person/month)

No. Positions

Chairman of the Board of

1 . 5.000.000 5.000.000
Directors
Secretary of the Board of

5 ) 4.000.000 4.000.000
Directors

6.2.Salary and allowances plan for the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board,
and Board Secretary in 2025.

- The monthly temporary payment for the full-time Head of the Supervisory
Board is VND 22.000.000 and is determined to be equivalent to the Chief Accountant's
salary.

- Allowances for non-executive managers:

+ Chairman of the Board of Directors: 5.000.000 VND/month.
+ Board of Directors Member: 5.000.000 VND/person/month.
+ Supervisory Board Member: 4.000.000 VND/person/month.

- Allowance for Secretary of the Board of Directors: 4.000.000 VND/month.

Based on the business performance results for 2025, the actual salary fund for the_::\\

full-time Head of the Supervisory Board and the actual remuneration for the Board of \7\

Directors and the Supervisory Board will be settled in accordance with regulations. 7NG )

ING) |

7. Approval of delegation to the Board of Directors to choose one of the followb %)
companies to audit the 2025 financial statements: A/

- RSM Vietnam Audit and Consulting Company Limited.
VACO Audit Company Limited.
- A&C Audit and Consulting Company Limited.

8. Approval of the adjustment and supplementation of the Company's Logo and
Product Logo according to Proposal No. 27/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025, from the
Company's Board of Directors.

9. Approval of the adjustment of the plan for using the proceeds from the private
share offering according to Proposal No. 28/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025, from the
Company's Board of Directors.

10. Approval of the amendment and supplementation of the Company's Charter, the
Internal Governance Regulations, and the Board of Directors' Operating Regulations
according to Proposal No. 34/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025, from the Company's Board of
Directors.

11. Approval of the dismissal of Mr. Tran Anh Dung from his position as a Member
of the Board of Directors for the term IV (2021-2026), effective from 13/04/2025.

12. Approval of the dismissal of Mrs. Le Thi Yen from her position as a Member of
the Supervisory Board for the term IV (2021-2026), effective from 13/04/2025.

13. Approval of the list of candidates for supplementary election to the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board.
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14. Approval of the election results for the supplementary member of the Board of
Directors for the remainder of the term IV (2021-2026): Mr Huynh Trung Hieu. - Member

of the Board of Directors.

15. Approval of the election results for the supplementary member of the
Supervisory Board for the remainder of the term IV (2021-2026): Mrs. Dinh Thi Nhi
Uyen. - Member of the Supervisory Board.

Article 2. This resolution takes effect from 13/04/2025. The Board of Directors,
Supervisory Board, General Director, and relevant units and individuals are responsible
for implementation.

Recipients:
- As states in article 2; ,/
/

- Archived: Files, BOD Secretariat.
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
INVESTMENT JOINT - STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom - Happiness

No: 30/BB.bHDBCD-DNC Dong Nai, April 13, 2025

MINUTES
OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

I. COMPANY INFORMATION

Company name: Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint - Stock Company.

Headquarters: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street, Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa
City, Dong Nai Province.

Business Registration Number: 3600259352.
II. TIME, VENUE, AND PARTICIPANTS
- Time: At 14:00 on April 13, 2025.

- Venue: Company’s Hall, 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street, Trang Dai Ward,
Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province.

et B
1=\ oW
/)‘\\ i
R
-8y

N/

- Participants:

Company’s Board of Directors;

+

+ Company’s Board of Supervisors;
+ Company’s Board of General Directors;

+ All shareholders/representatives of shareholders attending the Meeting.
III. CONDITIONS FOR HOLDING THE MEETING.

The Meeting listened to Ms. Ho Thi Minh Tam — Head of the Board of Supervisors —
reporting the verification of shareholder eligibility for attending the 2025 Annual General
Meeting as follows:

- Total number of shareholders of the Company as of the record date (March 17,
2025) is 183 shareholders, holding a total of 12.834.000 voting shares.

- At the time of the opening of the General Meeting, there were 21 shareholders in
attendance, representing 12.295.111 shares, equivalent to 95,8% of the total voting shares.

Therefore, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai Material
& Building Investment Joint — Stock Company has met all the necessary conditions to
proceed in accordance with the Enterprise Law, the Company Charter, and other relevant
regulations.
IV. CONTENT AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE MEETING

1. Introduction of the Presidium, Appointment of the Secretariat, and Voting
Committee

1.1. Presidium:

The Organizing Committee introduced the Presidium, including:

Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders — April 13, 2025. 1/7




- Mr. Truong Viet Hoang Son — Chairman of the Board of Directors —
Chairperson of the Meeting

- Mr. Tran Anh Dien — Member of the Board of Directors, General Director of
the Company

1.2.  The Secretariat:

The Chairperson appointed the Secretariat for the meeting, including:
- Ms. Hoang Thi Lien;
- Ms. Pham Thi Thuy Trang.

1.3. Voting Committee:

After hearing the introduction of the proposed list of members for the Voting
Committee, the General Meeting voted to approve it with 12.197.228 shares in favor
(99,2%), 0 shares against (0%), and 97.900 shares abstaining (0,8%).

The Voting Committee includes the following members:

- Ms. Le Thi Hong Head of the Committee;
- Mr. Nguyen Hoang Phuong Member;
- Ms. Nguyen Thi Hang Member;
- Ms. Vu Thi Van Member;
- Ms. Dang Thi Hong Quyen Member.

2. Approval of the Meeting Regulations and Agenda.

After hearing the Presidium present the Working Regulations and the Agenda of the
General Meeting, the Meeting voted to approve them with 12.197.228 shares in favor
(99,2%), 0 shares against (0%), and 97.900 shares abstaining (0,8%).

3. Reports and Proposals from the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors.

The Chairperson of the Meeting assigned members to present the content of the
reports and proposals from the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors of the
Company to the General Meeting, including:

- Report No. 32/BC-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on business production results for
2024 and the business production plan for 2025.

- Report No. 33/BC-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on the activities of the Board of
Directors in 2024 and the activity plan for 2025.

- Report from the Board of Supervisors on the inspection and supervision of the
business activities of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint — Stock Company in
2024, dated March 26, 2025.

- Audited financial statements for 2024.

- Proposal No. 25/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on the plan for profit distribution in
2024 and the profit distribution plan for 2025.

- Proposal No. 26/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on the remuneration of executives,

wages and allowances for the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, secretaries of the
Board of Directors for 2024 and the plan for 2025.
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- Proposal No. 129/TTr-DNC-BKS dated April 2, 2025 on the selection of the
auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements.

- Proposal No. 27/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on the revision and supplementation
of the Company Logo and Product Logo.

- Proposal No. 28/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on the adjustment of the plan for
using funds obtained from the private share offering.

- Proposal No. 34/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on amending and supplementing the
Company Charter, the Company’s Internal Governance Regulations, and the Operational
Regulations of the Board of Directors.

- Proposal No. 29/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on the dismissal of members of the
Board of Directors, term IV (2021-2026).

- Proposal No. 30/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on the dismissal of members of the
Supervisory Board, term IV (2021-2026).

- Proposal No. 31/TTr-DNC dated April 4, 2025 on the list of candidates nominated to
supplement the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors.

4. The General Meeting Discusses the Contents of the Reports and Proposals
Presented.

After reviewing the contents of the report and presentation at the General Meeting,
shareholders have the following opinions:

Shareholder’s Opinion:

Mr. Ho Duc Toan, representative of Dai Viet Securities Joint Stock Company, represents
Ownership: 1.009.500 shares.

1) The DNC Building project has been implemented since 2008 but has been suspended
until now. What is the Company's plan to continue implementing this project?

2) The Dong Nai New Materials Factory project has been installed but has not been
completed or accepted yet. What is the Company's roadmap for the next implementation of
this project?

3) Regarding the Company's bad debt of about 8 billion, while the Company's profit is
negative, what solutions does the Company expect to have in 2025 to recover this bad debt?

4) Regarding production and business activities, the Government has had many
favorable policies and guidelines for Enterprises. What benefits does the Company enjoy from
those policies?

Opinion of the Presidium:

- Regarding the DNC Building project, which has been suspended since 2008, it is
expected that in 2025, the Board of Directors will conduct an assessment of the feasibility of
the project and will report to the General Meeting of Shareholders at the nearest meeting.

- The Dong Nai New Materials Factory project has been implemented since 2019 but
has not yet been accepted and handed over due to not reaching the required design capacity.
Currently, the Board of Directors is working with the supplier on this content to soon
complete the acceptance and handover.
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- Regarding bad debts. the Company is deploying the legal department to receive and
handle them. According to the plan, the Company is expected to recover about 60 - 70% of
these debts.

- Regarding production and business activities, the Company's strength is mineral
exploitation at the two quarries Tan Cang 5 and Thien Tan 5. However, due to some legal
procedures related to minerals and land, exploitation is temporarily suspended. Currently, the
Company has been granted an investment policy decision for these two projects. It is expected
that the mine will resume exploitation at the end of 2025.

The Presidium continued to acknowledge the opinions and committed to striving to
fulfill the tasks assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders for 2025.

5. Report on Additional Shareholders Attending the General Meeting.

Ms. Ho Thi Minh Tam — Head of the Verification Committee — reported on the
additional shareholders attending the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders as
follows:

After the official opening of the Meeting, until 15:50 on April 13, 2025, the total
number of shareholders attending the Meeting was 26 shareholders, equivalent to
12.295.128 shares, accounting for 95,8% of the total voting shares.

6. Resolutions on the Contents of the General Meeting

- The Voting Committee provided guidance on the voting procedures. The General
Meeting conducted voting on the reports and proposals presented by using ballots.

- The results of the voting on the contents at the General Meeting were as follows:
+ Number of ballots issued: 26 ballots, representing 12.295.128 shares.
+ Number of ballots collected: 26 ballots, representing 12.295.128 shares.
+ Number of valid ballots: 26 ballots, representing 12.295.128 shares.
+ Number of invalid ballots: 0 ballots, representing 0 shares.
Voting result summary: (Ballot counting minutes attached).

Agree Disagree No Opinion
No. Voting Content
Shares % Shares % Shares %
; |Approval of the listofthe |\, 15,00 | g9 0 0 0% 97.900 | 0.8%
Voting Committee
, | Approval of the Working | |, 10,70 | 9905 | ¢ 0% 97.900 | 0.8%
Regulations and Agenda
Report No. 32/BC-DNC
3 | dated April 4, 2025 0n 2024) | (07 20| 99005 | g 0% 97.900 | 0.8%

business results and 2025
business plan

Report No. 33/BC-DNC
dated April 4, 2025 on the
4 | 2024 activities of the Board | 12.197.228 | 99.2% 0 0% 97.900 0.8%
of Directors and the 2025
action plan
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No.

Voting Content

Agree

Disagree

No Opinion

Shares

%

Shares %

Shares

%

n

Report of the Board of
Supervisors on the
inspection and supervision
of the business activities of
Dong Nai Material &
Building Investment Joint —
Stock Company in 2024
dated March 26, 2025

12.197.228

99,2%

0%

97.900

0,8%

2024 Audited Financial
Statements

12.197.228

99,2%

0%

97.900

0,8%

Proposal No. 25/TTr-DNC
dated April 4, 2025 on the
2024 profit distribution plan
and the 2025 distribution
plan

12.197.228

99,2%

0%

97.900

0,8%

Proposal No. 26/TTr-DNC
dated April 4, 2025 on the
salaries of executives, and
the salaries and
remuneration of the Board
of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors, and the
Secretary of the Board of
Directors implemented in
2024 and the plan for 2025.

11.187.728

90,99%

0%

1.107.400

9,01%

Proposal No. 129/TTr-
DNC-BKS dated April 2,
2025 on the selection of the
auditing firm for the 2025
financial statements

12.197.228

99.2%

0%

97.900

0.8%

10

Proposal No. 27/TTr-DNC
dated April 4, 2025 on the
revision and
supplementation of the
Company Logo and Product
Logo.

6.178.988

50.26%

0%

6.116.140

49,74%

Ll

Proposal No. 28/TTr-DNC
dated April 4, 2025 on the
revision of the plan for
using proceeds from the
private placement of shares.

12.197.228

99.2%

0%

97.900

0.8%

12

Proposal No. 34/TTr-DNC
dated 04/04/2025 on the
amendment and removal of

the Company Charter,

12.197.228

99.2%

0%

97.900

0.8%

Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders — April 13, 2025.

5/7



Agree Disagree No Opinion

No. Voting Content
2 Shares % Shares % Shares %

Internal Governance
Regulations, and Board of
Directors’ Operational
Regulations.

Proposal No. 29/TTr-DNC
dated 04/04/2025 on the

13 | dismissal of a member of | 12.197.228 | 99.2% 0 0% 97.900 0.8%
the Board of Directors,
Term IV (2021-2026).

Proposal No. 30/TTr-DNC
dated 04/04/2025 on the

14 | dismissal of a member of 12.197.228 | 99.2% 0 0% 97.900 0.8%
the Supervisory Board,
Term IV (2021-2026).

Proposal No. 31/TTr-DNC

dated 04/04/2025 on the list
of candidates for additional | . _ . - ; .
15 electicn to fhie Board of 12.197.228 | 99.2% 0 0% 97.900 0,8%
Directors and the Board of

Supervisors.

Conclusion: Based on the above voting results, all items presented at the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders were unanimously approved.

7. Additional Election of Members to the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors '

The Voting Committee presented the regulations for the additional election of
members to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors. Simultaneously,
instructions on the voting process were provided, and the General Meeting proceeded with
the additional election of members to the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors.

The voting results for the additional election of members to the Board of Directors
and Board of Supervisors are as follows:

» Result of the additional election of a member to the Board of Directors:

Mr. Huynh Trung Hieu received: 12.295.128/12.295.128 votes, achieving 100%.

The elected candidate to the Board of Directors of Dong Nai Material & Building
Investment Joint - Stock Company for the remaining term of Term IV (2021-2026) is:
Huynh Trung Hieu

» Result of the additional election of a member to the Board of Supervisors:

Ms. Dinh Thi Nhi Uyen received: 12.295.128/12.295.128 votes, achieving 100%.

The elected candidate to the Board of Supervisors of Dong Nai Material & Building
Investment Joint - Stock Company for the remaining term of Term IV (2021-2026) is:
Dinh Thi Nhi Uyen.

8. Voting to Approve the Minutes and Resolutions of the General Meeting.
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The representative of the Secretariat read the draft Minutes and Resolutions of the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The Chairperson requested a vote from the
General Meeting on the approval of the Minutes and Resolutions, 100% of the shareholders
voted in favor through the official voting method of ballot voting.

The meeting concluded at 17:00 on the same day.

SECRETARIAT O.B/ OF THE GENERAL
OF SHAREHOLDERS

' —
[ e s

Pham Thi Thuy Trang Hoang Thi Lien Trlfo'ng Viet Hoang Son
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

INVESTMENT JOINT - STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom - Happiness
No: 5% /BBKP- PHDCD-DNC Dong Nai, day 13 month 04 year 2025

BALLOT COUNTING MINUTES
On the matters voted at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Building Investment Joint - Stock Company, located at 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc
Street, Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province.

The Ballot Counting Committee conducted the ballot counting for voting matters at
the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders with the following details:

1. General Information about the Company

- Company name: Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint — Stock
Company '

- Business registration number: 3600259352.

- Head office address: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street, Trang Dai Ward,
Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province.

2. Ballot Counting Committee Members

- Ms. Le Thi Hong Chairwoman;

- Mr. Nguyen Hoang Phuong Member;

- Ms. Nguyen Thi Hang Member;

- Ms. Vu Thu Van Member;

- Ms. Dang Thi Hong Quyen Member.
3. Content:
Ballot counting of voting matters at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

4. Vote Inspection:
- Total number of votes issued: 26 votes, equivalent to 12.295.128 shares.
- Total number of votes received: 26 votes, equivalent to 12.295.128 shares.
- Number of valid votes: 26 votes, equivalent to 12.295.128 shares.

- Number of invalid votes: 0 votes, equivalent to 0 shares.



5. Vote Counting Results:

Agree Disagree No Opinion
No. Voting Content
¢ T Number Number of Ratio Number Nt;in;').er of Ratio Number | Number of Ratio
of Votes | Voting Shares - |of Votes S;:al:g of Votes | Voting Shares
25 99,20 0 97.900 0,80
1 | Approval of the list of the Voting Committee 12.197.228 0 i
i i 25 99,20 0 97.900 0,80
5 Approval of the Working Regulations and 12.197 228 0 ]
Agenda
- a 2 i ; 7.900 80
3 Report Nf)- 32/BC-DNC dated 04/0_4/2025 on J 12,197 228 99,20 0 0 ; 97.90 0,8
2024 business results and 2025 business plan.
Report No. 33/BC-DNC dated 04/04/2025 on 23 99,20 0 97.900 0,80
4 | the 2024 activities of the Board of Directors 12.197.228 0 I
and the 2025 action plan
Report of the Board of Supervisors on the 23 99,20 0 97.900 0.89
inspection and supervision of the business
5 | activities of Dong Nai Material & Building 12.197.228 0 1
Investment Joint — Stock Company in 2024
dated March 26, 2025. o)
25 99,20 0 97.900 0,80
6 | Audited 2024 Financial Statements 12.197.228 0 1 ’
Proposal No. 25/TT1‘—DT\TC dated 04/04/2025 23 99 20 0 97.900 0,80
7 | on the 2024 profit distribution plan and the 12.197.228 0 1
20235 distribution plan
Proposal No. 26/TTr-DNC dated 04/04/2025 24 90,99 0 1.107.400 9,01
on the salaries of executives, and the salaries
and remuneration of the Board of Directors
% T
8 the Board of Supervisors, and the Secretary 11.187.728 0 2
of the Board of Directors implemented in
2024 and the plan for 2025.
Proposal No. 129/TTr-DNC-BKS dated 25 99,20 0 97.900 0,80
9 | 62/04/2025 on the selection of the auditing 12.197.228 0 1
firm for the 2025 financial statements




Agree Disagree No Opinion
A% Poting:Content Number Number of Ratio Numben th:::);r o Ratio Number | Number of Ratio
of Votes | Voting Shares of Votes Shar fq of Votes | Voting Shares

Proposal No. 27/TTr-DNC dated 04/04/2025 21 50,26 0 6.116.140 49,74
10 | on the revision and supplementation of the 6.178.988 0 5

Company Logo and Product Logo.

Proposal No. 28/TTr-DNC dated 04/04/2025 29 99,20 0 97.900 0,80
11 | on the revision of the plan for using proceeds 12.197.228 0 1

from the private placement of shares.

Proposal No. 34/TTr-DNC dated 04/04/2025 25 99,20 0 97.900 0,80

on the amendment and removal of the
12 | Company Charter, Internal Governance 12.197.228 0 I

Regulations, and Board of Directors’

Operational Regulations.

Proposal No. 29/TTr-DNC dated 04/04/2025 25 99,20 0 97.900 0,80
13 | on the dismissal of a member of the Board of 12.197.228 0 d

Directors, Term IV (2021-2026).

Proposal No. 30/TTr-DNC dated 04/04/2025 25 99,20 0 97.900 0,80
14 | on the dismissal of a member of the 12.197.228 0 1

Supervisory Board, Term IV (2021-2026).

Proposal No. 31/TTr-DNC dated 04/04/2025 25 99,20 0 97.900 0,80

on the list of candidates for additional
32 election to the Board of Directors and the sl ed0 0 I

Board of Supervisors.




With the above voting results, all agenda items were unanimously approved by the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
The vote counting concluded at .¢... hour .4S.. on the same day.

The Vote Counting Committce affirms the accuracy and integrity of this record.

VOTE COUNTING COMMITTEE MEMBERS

HEAD OF THE COMMITTEE
Nguyen Hoang Phuong ,_:?___‘/:_ ......... f
Nguyen Thi Hang ............ _:FE.]}.—/- ............ fﬁ/
Vu Thi Van Le Thi Hong

Dang Thi Hong Quyen




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
INVESTMENT JOINT - STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom - Happiness

No: 79 /BBKP- DIIDCD-DNC Dong Nai, day 13 month 04 year 2025

VOTE COUNTING MINUTES
On the Additional Election of Members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Today, at & hour<l. on April 13, 2025, at the hall of Dong Nai Material & Building
Investment Joint - Stock Company, located at: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street,
Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province.

The Vote Counting Committee conducted the ballot counting for the election of
additional members to the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors at the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, with the following details:

1. General Information about the Company
- Company name: Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint — Stock Company

- Business registration number: 3600259352.
- Head office address: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street, Trang Dai Ward, Bien
Hoa City, Dong Nai Province.
2. Ballot Counting Committee Members

-Ms. Le Thi Hong Chairwoman;
- Mr. Nguyen Hoang Phuong Member;
- Ms. Nguyen Thi Hang Member;
-Ms. Vu Thu Van Member;
- Ms. Dang Thi Hong Quyen Member.

3. Content:
Vote Counting for the Additional Election of Members of the Board of Directors and
Members of the Supervisory Board at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

4. Vote Inspection
4.1. Ballots for Additional Election of Members of the Board of Directors

—  Total number of votes issued: 26 votes, equivalent to 12.295.128 voting rights.
— Total number of votes received: 26 votes, equivalent to 12.295.128 voting rights.
—  Number of valid votes: 26 votes, equivalent to 12.295.128 voting rights.

— Number of invalid votes: 0 votes, equivalent to 0 voting rights.
4.2. Ballots for Additional Election of Members of the Board of Supervisors

—  Total number of votes issued: 26 votes, equivalent to 12.295.128 voting rights.
— Total number of votes received: 26 votes, equivalent to 12.295.128 voting rights.

—  Number of valid votes: 26 votes, equivalent to 12.295.128 voting rights.




—  Number of invalid votes: 0 votes, equivalent to 0 voting rights.
5. Voting Results
5.1. Additional Election of Members of the Board of Directors
—  Mr.: Huynh Trung Hieu
Total number of votes received 12.295.128 / 12.295.128 achieved 100 %.
5.2. Election of Members of the Supervisory Board
—  Ms.: Dinh Thi Nhi Uyen
Total number of votes received 12.295.128 / 12.295.128 achieved 100 %.
Based on the published list of candidates and the results of the vote inspection, the

Election Committee announces the elected candidates:
1. Additional Members of the Board of Directors for the 4th Term (2021 — 2026)

include:

—  Mr./Ms.: Huynh Trung Hieu
2. Additional Members of the Supervisory Board for the 4th Term (2021 — 2026)
include:
—  Mr./Ms.: Dinh Thi Nhi Uyen.
The vote counting process was completed at ... hour .4(..... on the same day.
The Election and Vote Counting Committee affirms the accuracy and integrity of this

vote counting record.

VOTE COUNTING COMMITTEE MEMBERS
HEAD OF THE COMMITTEE

Nguyen Hoang Phuong Wi =, ‘
1>
}fﬁ/

Nguyen Thi Hang

Vi Thi Vil oo consmosmnmmnglatians Le Thi Hong

Dang Thi Hong Quyen
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< AGENDA
AL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

<
Y, Day 13 month 4 year 2025

Time Agenda

Reception of delegates and shareholders,
13:30 — 14:00 | Registration of shareholders attending the meeting,
Distribution of meeting documents.

Organizing committee: Opening statement, introduction of delegates and
participants.

Report on the eligibility of attending shareholders;

14:00 — 14:20 | Introduction of the Presiding Board and Chairperson of the Meeting;
Election of the Secretariat;

Approval of the list of the Voting Committee.

Approval of the Meeting Regulations;
Approval of the Meeting Agenda.

Presentation of reports and proposals:
- Report on business results for 2024 and business operational plan for 2025;

- Report on the activities of the Board of Directors in 2024 and the plan
for 2025;

- Report of the Supervisory Board on the inspection and supervision of the
Company’s business activities in 2024;

- Audited financial statements for 2024;

- Proposal on profit distribution for 2024 and the profit distribution plan
for 2025;

- Proposal on the salary of executives, and remuneration for the Board of
14:20 — 15:20 | Directors, Supervisory Board, and Board Secretary in 2024 and the plan for
2023;

- Proposal on selecting an auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements;
- Proposal on changing the Company’s Logo, Product Logo;

- Proposal on adjusting the plan for using proceeds from the private share
issuance;

- Proposal on amendments and supplements to the Company's Charter,
Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance, and the Board of Directors'
Operating Regulations.

- Proposal on the dismissal of a Board of Directors member;
- Proposal on the dismissal of a Supervisory Board member;




Time

Agenda

- Proposal on the list of candidates for additional election of Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board members.

- Other matters within the authority of the General Meeting of
Shareholders (if any)

15:20 - 15:40

Discussion session.

15:40 - 16:00

Guidelines for voting procedures; the General Meeting votes to approve
reports and proposals

- Approval of the election regulations for additional Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board members;

- Guidelines for the election process, shareholders proceed with voting for
additional Board of Directors and Supervisory Board members.

16:00 — 16:15

Break— Vote counting for resolutions/voting ballots

16:15 -16:30

- Report on vote counting results.
- Announcement of the election results for additional Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board members.

Approval of the Resolutions and Meeting Minutes.

Closing of the Meeting.




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom — Happiness

Dong Nai, day 04 month 04 year 2025

WORKING REGULATIONS
OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS IN 2025

Article 1.  Purpose
The purpose of issuing the working regulations for the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2025 is to:

1. Ensure the principles of transparency and publicity;

2. Facilitate the successful organization of the Meeting in compliance with legal

regulations.
Article 2.  Scope of application

1. These regulations apply to the organization and management of the General
Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock
Company.

2. These regulations specifically define the rights and obligations of shareholders and
participants, as well as the conditions, procedures for conducting the Meeting, and
voting on matters under the authority of the Meeting.

3. Shareholders, shareholder representatives, and other participants of the Meeting are
responsible for complying with these Regulations.

Article 3.  Condition for convening the General Meeting of Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be convened when the attending
shareholders represent more than 50% of the total voting shares of the Company.

Article 4.  Conditions for participation and regulations on proxy authorization

1. Shareholders can be legal entities, individuals, or representatives of shareholders, or
a group of shareholders owning shares in the Company (hereinafter referred to as
‘shareholders’).

2. Shareholders entitle to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders under the law
may participate either in person or authorize a representative to attend on their
behalf. The authorized representative shall not delegate their authority to another
person and shall not nominate themselves for election in a personal capacity. If
multiple authorized representatives are appointed, the number of shares and voting
rights assigned to each representative must be clearly specified. Authorization must
be documented in writing as follows:

- If the shareholder is an individual, the authorization document must be
registered and clearly state the full names of both the authorizing
shareholder and the authorized representative.

|




- If the shareholder is a legal entity, the authorization document must be
signed and sealed (if applicable) by the duly authorized representative or
legally authorized person of that entity.

- The authorized representative must submit the authorization document
before entering the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 5. Rights and obligations of common shareholders participating in the
meeting

1.

Conditions for participation

Shareholders who are legal entities, individuals, or representatives of shareholders,

or a group of shareholders owning voting shares in the Company on the record date have
the right to participate in the General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Rights and obligations of eligible shareholders attending the General Meeting
a. Rights of shareholders

Attend and speak at the General Meeting of Shareholders, exercise voting rights
directly at the meeting, through an authorized representative, or via remote voting.

Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding at least 5% of the total ordinary
shares have the right to propose matters for inclusion in the meeting agenda. The
proposal must be made in writing and submitted to the Company at least five (05)
working days before the opening date of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The
proposal must include the shareholder’s full name, the number and type of shares
held, and the proposed agenda item.

Shareholders are entitled to receive meeting notices, agendas, and relevant
information regarding matters to be discussed and voted on at the General Meeting.

Shareholders have the right to review, extract, and copy the list of shareholders
eligible to attend the General Meeting.

Shareholders may request corrections of inaccurate information or additions of
necessary details about themselves in the shareholder list.

Shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting may do so in person or
authorize a representative to attend in accordance with the Company's charter.
Shareholders and shareholder representatives, after hearing the reports on matters
requiring approval, shall discuss and vote on each item using voting ballots.
Shareholders or authorized representatives arriving after the meeting has
commenced may still register and participate in voting immediately after

registration. In this case, the validity of previously passed resolutions remains
unchanged.

Obligations of shareholders

Each shareholder or representative must bring identification documents (ID card,
Citizen ID, Passport, etc.), the invitation letter, and the proxy letter (if any).
Shareholders/shareholder representatives must present these documents to the

2



Shareholder Verification Committee for verification and to receive a voting ballot
(with the shareholder code) reflecting the total number of shares equivalent to the
number of voting shares held.

Shareholders or their representatives must complete the registration procedures
with the Organizing Committee upon attending the meeting.

During the General Meeting, shareholders must comply with the guidance of the
Chairperson, behave courteously and respectfully, and not disrupt order.

Shareholders must maintain discipline in speaking and comply with the usage and
preservation of documents.

Shareholders and authorized representatives attending the meeting must strictly
adhere to the working regulations of the General Meeting. If any shareholder or
authorized representative does not comply with the verification regulations or
security measures, the Board of Directors may, after careful consideration, refuse or
expel that shareholder or representative from the meeting.

Article 6.  Rights of obligations of the Presidium

1.

The Presidium is nominated by the Company’s Board of Directors and consiststwo
members. The Chairman of the Board of Directors presides over the General
Meeting of Shareholders (Chairperson).

. Responsibilities of the Presidium

Preside over the General Meeting.
Guide delegates and shareholders in discussions.
Present drafts and conclusions on matters requiring shareholder voting.
Address shareholder inquiries during the meeting.
Operate based on the principle of collective democratic centralism, ensuring that
the General Meeting is conducted legally, orderly, and reflects the will of the
majority of attending shareholders and shareholder representatives.
The Chairperson of the General Meeting may postpone the meeting to a later time
and at a different location if deemed necessary, even if a quorum is present, in the
following cases:
+ The venue lacks sufficient seating for all attendees.
+ Communication facilities at the venue are inadequate for shareholders to
participate, discuss, and vote.
+ Attendees disrupt order, posing a risk that the meeting cannot be conducted
fairly and legally.

Article 7. Rights and obligations of the Meeting Secretariat

1.

The Meeting Secretariat is introduced by the Chairperson and is accountable to
both the Chairperson and the General Meeting of Shareholders for its duties.

2. Responsibilities of the Secretariat
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- Accurately and fully record the contents of the General Meeting, including
resolutions and issues raised by shareholders or shareholder representatives.

- Assist the Presidium in announcing the draft Meeting Minutes, Resolutions of

the General Meeting, and notices from the Presidium to shareholders upon
request.

Article 8.  Rights and obligations of the Voting Committee

1. The Voting Committee is nominated by the Presidium and approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Responsibilities of Voting Committee:

- Monitor and oversee the voting/election process of shareholders or their
representatives.

- Organize the collection and counting of votes/election ballots.

- Prepare the vote-counting report and announce the results before the General
Meeting.

- Submit voting/election ballots and the vote-counting report to the Presidium.

3. The Voting Committee must conduct its duties with honesty and accuracy and is
responsible for the voting and election results.

Article 9.  Rights and obligations of the Verification Committee

1. The Verification Committee is nominated by the Board of Directors.

2. The Verification Committee is responsible for verifying the eligibility of
shareholders attending the meeting, distributing relevant documents for the session
to shareholders, and reporting to the General Meeting on the results of the
verification of the eligibility of participating shareholders.

Article 10. Voting methods and procedures

1. All shareholders eligible to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS)
have the right to vote on matters under the GMS’s authority. Each shareholder’s
voting rights correspond to the number of shares they own or are authorized to
represent.

2. Shareholders vote on matters during the meeting by raising their Voting Card and
using the Voting Ballot (as per the instructions on the Voting Ballot).

3. Voting ballot regulations:

- Voting can be conducted directly at the meeting venue.
4




- Shareholders may submit their Voting Ballots via postal mail or email to the
Company before 11:30 AM on April 13, 2025. Shareholders who do not attend
the GMS can download the Voting Ballot from the Company’s
website: www.vatlieudongnai.vn (under the Shareholders/ General Meeting of
Shareholders/2025 section). The Voting Ballot must be fully completed and
signed by the shareholder.

4. If a shareholder does not mark any box for a particular voting item, it is considered
as“no opinion”on that item. If a shareholder marks 2 both “Agree” and “Disagree”
for the same voting item, that vote is deemed invalid.

5. Any other voting-related matters will be decided by the Chairperson.

Article 11. Additional Election of Board of Directors (BOD) and Supervisory
Board (SB) Members
1. Nomination and candidacy principles

The nomination, candidacy, and election process for additional members of the
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board must comply with current laws and the
Company’s Charter.

2. Election procedures

- The list of candidates for the additional election of BOD and Supervisory Board
members must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders before
voting.

- The election must be conducted by cumulative voting, whereby each
shareholder’s total number of votes is equal to their total number of shares
multiplied by the number of seats to be elected. Shareholders may allocate all or
part of their total votes to one or multiple candidates. The candidates with the
highest total votes are elected. If two or more candidates receive the same
number of votes, the selection is determined as follows:

+ The candidate who owns or represents a larger number of shares will be
selected.

+ If the shareholding is equal, a re-election will be conducted among the
tied candidates.

Article 12. Approval of resolutions by voting ballots
1. A resolution is approved if it receives the affirmative votes of more than 50% of

the total voting shares of shareholders present at the GMS.
2. For the following matters, approval requires at least 65% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the GMS:
a. The type and total number of shares to be issued;
b. Changes in the Company’s business sectors and activities;
5
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c. Changes in the Company’s management structure;
Investment projects or asset sales valued at 35% or more of the Company’s
total assets as stated in the latest financial statements;

e. Reorganization or dissolution of the Company.

Article 13. Principles and methods of expressing opinions

1;

2.

Discussions shall only take place within the designated timeframe and shall be
limited to matters presented in the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Shareholders/Authorized representatives attending the meeting must register and
obtain approval from the Presidium before expressing their opinions.

Shareholders shall present their opinions concisely and focus on key points
relevant to the approved agenda. The Chairperson shall arrange speaking turns
based on the order of registration and provide responses to shareholders’ concerns.
For major issues requiring further review or when time constraints do not allow for
immediate responses, the Chairperson shall acknowledge and respond in writing at
a later date.

The total speaking time for each shareholder shall not exceed 03 minutes. If this
time limit is exceeded, the Chairperson may request the shareholder to submit their
questions or proposals in writing. The Secretariat shall record these, and the Board
of Directors shall provide written responses within 05 working days from the date
of receipt.

Article 14. Meeting minutes and resolutions of the General Meeting

L.

2.

All contents discussed at the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be recorded in
the meeting minutes by the Secretariat. Key resolutions shall be documented in the
official resolution.

The meeting minutes and resolutions shall be read and approved before the closing
of the General Meeting.

Article 15. Cases where the General Meeting of Shareholders fails to convene

1.

If the first convened General Meeting of Shareholders cannot be held due to failure
to meet the quorum requirements as stipulated in Article 3 of this Regulation, a
second meeting shall be convened within 30 days from the initially scheduled
meeting date. The second convened meeting shall be conducted if at least 33% of
the total voting shares of the Company are represented.

If the second meeting fails to meet the quorum requirements as specified in Clause
1 of this Article, a third meeting shall be convened within 20 days from the
scheduled date of the second meeting. In this case, the General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be conducted regardless of the total voting shares represented at
the meeting.

Article 16. Implementation provisions

Upon approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai Construction

and Materials Investment Joint Stock Company, the Organizing Committee and all




shareholders attending the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders shall be
responsible for implementing the provisions of this Regulation.

Recipients:
- 2025 AGM;
- Archived: Files.




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIET NAM
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No.: 3Z/BC-DNC Bien Hoa, day# month#f year 2025

REPORT
Business performance in 2024 and business plan for 2025

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

I. Business performance in 2024

1. Business performance in 2024 according to the audited 2024 financial

statements:
T
. . arget 2024 % Actual/
No. Indicator Unit (According to Actual 2024
: Target
GMS Resolutions)
Milli
1 | Total revenue \;Nllgn 93.192 97.263 | 104,37%
In which: Intra- Million sz / >
company revenue VND ‘ ¥
Million
2 | Net profit after tax VND 615 (7.072)
Tax payments to the | Million
34.00 . 0
3 state budget VND . a0l Loden

+»» Overall assessment:
- Revenue: The company achieved 104.37% of the planned target.

- Profit: Operating profit amounted to 590 million VND, while net profit after tax
recorded a loss of 7.072 million VND:

The reason is the incurrence of several unforeseen expenses, including:

+ Penalties and late payment interest on resource tax and mining rights fees:
5.221 million VND.

+ Additional land rental fees for Tan Cang 5 quarry from 2013 to 2022: 2.236
million VND.

+ Retrospective collection of mining rights fees from previous years for backfill
materials and weathered stone: 1.392 million VND.

1.1. Detailed business performance by sector

Actual/

No. Indicator Unit Target Actual
Target

1 | Tan Cang 5 Quarry




Actual/

No. Indicator Unit Target Actual o
Stone output Tons 490.000 591.860 | 120,79%
Revenue Million VND 37.030 44.832 | 121,07%

2 | Thien Tan 5 Quarry
Stone output Tons 480.000 654.891 136,44
Clay output Tons 130.000 48.891 37,6
Revenue Million VND 30.788 32.081 104,2
3 | Long Thanh Tuynel Brick
Factory
Production volume Units 16.000.000 8.957.800 56
Revenue Million VND 17.280. 10.371 60
4 | Concrete Enterprise
Production volume m3 1. 25875
Production revenue Million VND 2,019
5 | Other sectors
Concrete  batching plant | Million VND 1.920 1.920 100
rental
Weathered stone TC5 Million VND 5.126 2.068 40
Tuynel brick transportation Million VND 328
Concrete pumping Million VND 44
Others Million VND 1.048 847 80,82
Revenue Million VND 8.094 5.207 64,33
6 | Internal revenue Million VND 666
7 | Revenue from financing Million VND 18
activities
8 | Other income Million VND 2.069
Total revenue Million VND 93.192 97.263 104,37
Total gross profit Million VND 13.559 5.656 41,71
Administration expenses Million VND 12.244 12.078 98,64
Provisioning expenses Million VND 700 650 92,86
Profit before tax Million VND 615 (7.072)

2. Project implementation status

2.1. Tan Cang 5 Quarry:

Implemented in 2024, the Tan Cang 5 quarry achieved 120,79% of the assigned

production target and 121,07% of the revenue target

- Mining activities:




The company has compensated for approximately 18,4/25,175 hectares. Of this,
around 17,8 hectares have been used for mining pits, with excavation reaching a depth of -
60m. Pit 1 ceased operations in April 2024 due to the depletion of mining areas, and Pit 2
exhausted its reserves by December 2024. Currently, there is less than 1 hectare of
compensated land that has yet to be mined due to safety distance regulations for blasting.

- Legal documentation:

+ Land: Compensation, land clearance, and land transfers from households within
the mine boundary have not been completed due to legal. As a result, land-related
procedures, such as leasing and contract renewals, cannot proceed.

+ The application to increase the mining depth to -80m has not yet been processed.

2.2. Thien Tan 5 Quarry

Implemented in 2024, the Thien Tan 5 quarry achieved 136,44% of the assigned
stone production target, 37,6% of the clay production target, and 104,2% of the revenue target

- Mining activities:

The project covers an area of 27,77 hectares, with 20,63 hectares approved for mining.
The company has compensated for approximately 14,7 hectares, while 5,9 hectares in the
northern part of the quarry remain uncompensated. Currently, mining is expanding within the
compensated area, but the land procedures for 9,75 hectares, as per mining license No.
343/GP-UBND dated December 31, 2021, have not been finalized.

- Legal documentation:

+ Investment approval decision: The project implementation timeline is undergoing
adjustment.

+ Land: Compensation, land clearance, and land transfers from households within the
project boundary have not been completed. Since the project timeline adjustment and land use
registration have not yet been approved by the authorities, land-related procedures for the
project cannot proceed.

2.3. Dong Nai Concrete Enterprise

Due to difficult business conditions, declining sales volume, and low operational
efficiency, the company has temporarily suspended the business operations of the branch.

In August 2024, the company initiated a plan to lease the An Binh batching plant.
However, this has not yet been executed, as potential partners declined the lease due to the
plant’s limited space and the expiration of the land lease contract. On December 13, 2024, the
People’s Committee of Bien Hoa City issued Notice No. 1654/TB-UBND regarding the land
reclamation for the construction of a workplace for the Waterway Traffic Police under the
Dong Nai Provincial Police Department.

24. Long Thanh Tuynel Brick Factory

The consumption of tunnel bricks in 2024 faced significant difficulties, with the
total annual sales volume reaching only 56% of the planned target. On average, monthly
sales accounted for only about 50% of the factory’s capacity. The primary reason for this
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decline was the economic downturn, which led to a sharp decrease in construction
investments, subsequently reducing demand for bricks. Additionally, the rising cost of raw

materials resulted in less competitive pricing, further exacerbating the challenges in product
sales.

2.5. New materials plant project:

The acceptance and handover of the production line to the company have not yet been
completed.

3. Capital construction investment

Target 2024
No. Item Unit (as per GMS Actual 2024 | Notes

Resolutions)

Consulting fees for

preparing a re.p(l)rt to | Million

1 | apply for a mining permit 0 931
VND
at cote -80 for Tan Cang
5 Quarry

The consulting fees for preparing the report to apply for a mining permit at cote -80
for Tan Cang Quarry arose in 2020 under the capital investment policy approved at the
2020 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. However, the consultant only issued the
financial invoice in 2024, leading to the recognition of this expense in 2024.

II. 2025 Business plan.

1. 2025 business plan

No. Indicator Unit Target
1 Total revenue Million VND 104.857
2 Total gross profit Million VND 13.543
3 Administrative expenses Million VND 11.850
- Provisioning expenses Million VND 690
5 Net profit after tax Million VND 1.003
6 Tax payments to the state budget Million VND 38.700
2. 2025 investment capital plan for projects:
No. Expense item Unit Ta;g;tﬂ%;ns Notes
1 f))fl‘;gecompany office - Head M‘;ll\l;](;n 1.000
- Office renovation I\/\I};l}]gn 1.000
) II;,loa::Igt Thanh Tuynel Brick M‘;ll\l;](;n 1.200




. : Target 2025
No. Expense item Unit Notes
p . . WND)
- Relocation of the weighing Million
scale from Tan Cang 5 200
VND
Quarry for reuse
- Construction of a new main Million 1.000
gate and office renovation VND '
Dong Nai Concrete Million
> Enterprise VND 2000
Provisional
calculation of 50% of
- Temporary construction Million thg estzmated.bzddmg
; 2.000 | price for station
permit VND e
placement within the
Tuynel Brick Factory
land
4 | Contingency (10%) I‘f}g‘l‘;" 420
Million
Total VND 4.620

- Office and Long Thanh Tuynel Brick Plant renovations:

Currently, the infrastructure at the company’s office and the Long Thanh Tuynel
Brick Plant is deteriorating, affecting aesthetics and failing to meet workplace safety
standards. Therefore, maintenance and repair work are necessary to ensure smooth <

business operations while enhancing professionalism and workplace aesthetics.
- Application for a temporary construction permit for the concrete batching plant at; /*,

the vacant land in the Long Thanh Tuynel Brick Plant area: The company plans to relocate;%%"

the An Binh batching plant to the Long Thanh Tuynel Brick Plant due to land recovery in)'\—\/ i

An Binh Ward, as per Notice No. 1654/TB-UBND dated December 13, 2024, issued by

the Bien Hoa City People’s Committee. Additionally, the relocation aims to support key

A
e\
o
*

:

national projects and ensure smooth production and supply of concrete.
3. Implementation solutions

3.1. Mineral extraction sector
» Tan Cang 5 Quarry:

+ Focus on completing legal documentation, land procedures, and environmental
permit applications for the quarry.

+ Coordinate with the People's Committee of Bien Hoa City to facilitate the land
recovery plan for the 1,6-hectare area. The company has already made payment to the
Bien Hoa City Land Development Center for the approved compensation plan. Despite
two compulsory land recovery decisions (Decision No. 319/QD-UBND, Decision No.
444/QD-UBND, and Decision No. 445/QD-UBND), the site has not yet been handed over
for project implementation.

» Thien Tan 5 Quarry:




- Focus on completing the quarry’s legal documentation; Continue land-related
procedures as required; Prioritize finalizing the environmental permit application for the
project.

- Expedite the transfer of ownership documentation to facilitate quarry expansion.

3.2. Building materials production sector

- Strengthen marketing and sales efforts.

- Review costs, explore new suppliers for raw materials to ensure competitive
pricing, reduce production costs, and enhance price competitiveness. Maintain stable
product quality.

3.3. Other sectors

Prepare and submit the permit application for constructing a concrete batching plant
at the Long Thanh Tuynel Brick Factory.

This concludes the 2024 Business Performance Summary Reportand the 2025
Business Plan.

Sincerely!

.. O/B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Recipients:

- As above;
- Archive: Files.
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIET NAM
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No.: 43 /BC-DNC Bien Hoa, day (%} month#{ year 2025

REPORT
On the activities of the Board of Directors in 2024
And operational plan for 2025

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders
The Board of Directors of the Company hereby reports to the General Meeting of
Shareholders on the results of its activities in 2024 and the activity plan for 2025 as follows:

I. REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN I
2024. |

1. Members of the Board of Directors in 2024

Start date/End date of Board
membership
No. Member Position :
Appointment | Dismissal
date date
1 [Truong Viet Hoang Son Chairman 08/04/2024
Chairman 26/04/2021 08/04/2024
2 [Truong Cuong
Member 08/04/2024
3 [Tran Anh Dung Member 21/04/2022
4 |[Vu Trong Dung Member 21/04/2022
5 [Tran Anh Dien Member/ General Director 26/04/2021
Member/ D G 1
6 [Nguyen Tien Toan cmibey Sepuly Lencm 26/04/2021 | 08/04/2024
Director

The Board of Directors consists of 05 members, including 01 executive member and
04 non-executive members.

2. Summary of Board Meetings and Resolutions
In 2024, the Board of Directors held 8 meetings in accordance with regulations, with
full participation from all board members. Additionally, 12 written opinion requests were
made on matters within its authority, resulting in various resolutions and decisions for
directing and managing the company’s business operations, including:
<> Business operations.

- The Board of Directors assigned business operation tasks for 2024 to the General
Director.
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- Conducted shareholder consultation to approve adjustments and additions to the
private placement plan for increasing the Company’s charter capital.

- Successfully implemented the private placement plan to increase the Company’s
charter capital.
<> Human resources:

- Approved the leadership and management personnel planning for the 2020-2025
and 2025-2030 periods.

- Appointed/dismissed the General Director and Deputy General Director.

Additionally, the Board approved other matters within its authority.

(Details are provided in the attached list of Board Resolutions/Decisions.)
3. Salary and Remuneration of the Board of Directors in 2024.

Salary and remuneration for the Board of Directors were executed in accordance
with the resolution approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Plan Actual
No. Items
(VND/month) (VND/month)
1 | Salary of the Chairman from January to 27.000.000 27.175.428
April 2024
2 | Remuneration for Chairman (concurrent 5.000.000 5.000.000
position) from April 2024
3 | Remuneration for each Board Member 5.000.000 5.000.000

4. Report on transactions between the Company and Board members and their
related parties; transactions between the Company and any company in which a
Board member is a founding member or has held a managerial position within the
last three years prior to the transaction

Details are provided in Appendix 2, 3 and Appendix 5 of the Company
Governance Report for 2024 (Report No. 38/BC-DNC dated 17/01/2025) of Dong Nai
Material & Building Investment Joint Stock Company, which has been disclosed in
accordance with regulations.

5. Activities of Board Members

- Board members fully complied with their rights and obligations as stipulated in the
Company’s Charter, the Board’s Operational Regulations, and legal provisions.

- The Board operated collectively, engaging in thorough discussions and exchanges
on issues, ensuring a high level of consensus in making resolutions and decisions within
its authority.

6. Supervision of the General Director

- The General Director managed the Company’s operations in accordance with the
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, regularly
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reporting and consulting with the Board to ensure timely adjustments for achieving
optimal efficiency.

- The General Director fulfilled all assigned functions and responsibilities. All
decisions made by the General Director were issued in accordance with the granted
authority and in a timely manner. The General Director also provided full and timely
information and reports to Board members, supporting the Board’s oversight and
leadership functions.

7. Business Performance Results for 2024.

(1)
No. Indicator Unit Plan Actual o
Actual/Plan
Million
Total 93.192 97.263
1 otal revenue YND 104,37
In which: Intra- Million 666
company revenue VND
Million
2 | Net profit after t 615 7072
et profit after tax VND ( )
Tax payments to the Million
34.00 43,948 2
3 state budget VND ¢ 12520
4 Capital construction Million 0 931
investment VND J

II. REPORT ON THE RESULTS OF THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF
SHARES FOR CAPITAL INCREASE.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 55/NQ.DHPCD-DNC dated April 8, 2024, of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders (enclosed with Proposal No. 69/TTr-DNC dated March
29, 2024); Resolution No. 59/NQ.DHDPCD-DNC dated July 18, 2024, of the General
Meeting of Shareholders (collected by written consent);

Pursuant to Official Letter No. 9925/CNVSDC dated December 10, 2024, from the
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation regarding the certification of the
adjustment of the registered number of shares;

Pursuant to Decision No. 35/QD-SGDHN dated January 17, 2025, from the Hanoi
Stock Exchange approving the change in registered trading shares of DNC Company;

Pursuant to Announcement No. 287/TB-SGDHN dated February 7, 2025, from the
Hanoi Stock Exchange regarding the first trading day for the changed registered shares of
DNC Company.

1. Offering plan

- Stock name: Shares of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock
Company

- Stock type: Common shares
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- Number of shares offered: 4.000.000 shares.
- Offering price: 18.200 VND/share.
+ Highest offering price: 18.200 VND/share
+ Lowest offering price: 18.200 VND/share

- Lock-up period: All shares issued are subject to a one-year transfer restriction from
the date of completion of the offering.

- Total expected proceeds: 72.800.000.000 VND

- Subscription and payment period:

For professional securities investors approved by the General Meeting of
October 22, 2024, until 4:00 PM on November 20, 2024, as per
201/CV-DNC dated October 21, 2024, regarding the private

Shareholders: From
Announcement No.
placement of shares.

- Closing date

shares, including:

of the offering: November 19, 2024 (by the end of November 18,
2024, investors had fully paid for the subscribed shares).

2. Share offering results
- Total distributed shares: 4.000.000 shares, equivalent to 100% of the offered

+ Domestic investors: 4.000.000 shares;

+ Foreign investors: 0 share;

+ Economic organizations with foreign investors holding over 50% of charter
capital: O share.

- Selling price

: 18.200 VND/share

- Total proceeds from the offering: 72.800.000.000 VND

3. List of investors and their ownership ratios:

Business registration Shares {Otal Ownership
certificate / Other owned Shares swar:; ratio after
No.| Investor name |equivalent documents /| before the | allocated a(i)'tell'l the the
ID card / Citizen ID / | offering (shares) : offering
p ot h offering %) (%
asspo (shares) (shares) (%) (%)
No. 3600653422
Done Nai No.2 Issued on: 17/11/2022
1 C g . | Issuing authority: Dong | 2.154.737 980.000] 3.134.737 24,43
onstruction .
Nai Department of
Planning and Investment
No. 3600810322
Nhon Prach 2| Issued on: 04/05/2023
Issuing authority: Dong 0 3.020.000 3.020.000 2353
2 Concrete :
Ciiporation Na_l Department of
Planning and Investment
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(*) Calculated based on the number of outstanding shares after the offering.

4. Plan for using proceeds from the offering:

Planned capital
usage from the

. Remaining
. offermg.(as per Actual usage amount
No. Purpose of capital use Resolution No. (million VND) (million
59/NQ-DHDCD- VND)
DNC) (million
VND)
1 | Servicing government debt 34.843 30.478 4.365

Payment of bank loans, accounts
payable to suppliers, other due

2 | liabilities, additional investment in 37.957 28.387 9.570
fixed assets, and working capital
for business operations

Total 72.800 58.865 13.935

III. BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S OPERATIONAL PLAN FOR 2025.

1. Business plan for 2025

- Total revenue: 104.857 million VND.
- Net profit after tax: 1.003 million VND.
- Capital construction investment: 4.620 million VND.

2. Implementation solutions

In 2025, the Board of Directors (BOD) will enhance its management and supervisory
role in accordance with its assigned authority and responsibilities to ensure the effective
achievement of the set objectives.

To accomplish the 2025 plan, the Company will focus on the following specific
actions:

- Mining operations: Direct the execution of legal procedures and compensation
agreements with local households for the expansion of Tan Cang 5 quarry. For Thien Tan
5 quarry, complete the environmental permit application and land transfer procedures for
the project.

- Building materials production: Strengthen management, supervision, and direction
of business operations, implement cost-cutting measures to reduce production costs, and
increase sales volume.

- Continue to develop and improve shareholder relations. Ensure timely, transparent, and
public disclosure of corporate governance matters to shareholders and investors, maximizing
shareholder benefits.

- Carry out duties as prescribed in the Enterprise Law and the Company’s Charter.

- Supervise the CEO in executing the Resolutions and Decisions of the BOD and the
General Meeting of Shareholders.
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- Work closely with the Supervisory Board and relevant organizations to ensure
efficient business operations.

The above report presents the Board of Directors' review of 2024 and the operational
plan for 2025. The Board respectfully submits it to the General Meeting of Shareholders
for approval.

.. O/B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Recipients:

- As above;
- Archived: Files.
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LIST OF RESOLUTIONS AND DECISIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN

2024

No.

Resolutions/
Decision No.

Date

Content

Approval
rate

50/NQ-HDbQT-
DNC

22/01/2024

Approval of contracts and transactions with related
parties, including Dong Nai Construction Joint Stock
Company, Sonadezi Environment Joint Stock Company,
and Dong Nai Water Joint Stock Company

100%

51/NQ-HPQT

22/01/2024

Resolutions of the 14th meeting:

- Approval of the business performance for Q4/2023

- Approval of the business plan for 2024

- Approval of the business plan for Q1/2024

- Agreement on the policy to develop a restructuring
plan for the concrete branch

- Approval of the report on material and fuel usage in
2023

- Approval of the material and fuel consumption norms
for 2024

100%

52/NQ-HPQT-
DNC

31/01/2024

Agreement on finalizing the list of shareholders
attending the 2024 annual general meeting of
shareholders

100%

53/NQ-HDQT-
DNC

15/03/2024

Resolutions of the 15th meeting:

- Approval of the plan and agenda for the 2024 annual
general meeting of shareholders.

- Approval of the 2023 salary fund settlement and the
2024 salary plan.

- Approval of the policy to implement the business plan
for the Concrete Enterprise Branch.

100%

54/NQ-HDQT-
DNC

08/04/2024

Resolutions of the 16th meeting: Election of the
chairman of the board of directors for the remaining
term of the fourth tenure (2021-2026)

100%

56/NQ-HPQT-
DNC

17/06/2024

Resolutions of the 17th meeting:

- Approval of the business performance results for
Q1/2024

- Approval of the business plan for Q2/2024

- Agreement on the task allocation table for board
members for the fourth tenure (2021-2026)

- Approval of the adjustment and supplementation of
the private share issuance plan to increase charter
capital.

- Approval of the plan and content for soliciting
shareholder opinions in writing on the adjustment and
supplementation of the private share issuance plan to
increase charter capital.

100%

57/NQ-HPQT-
DNC

17/06/2024

Approval of the final registration date for collecting
shareholder opinions in writing

100%

58/NQ-HPQT-
DNC

17/06/2024

Agreement to select RSM Vietnam Auditing &
Consulting Co., Ltd. as the auditor for the company’s
2024 financial statements

100%

60/NQ-HDQT-
DNC

18/07/2024

Implementation of the private placement of shares to
increase charter capital

100%
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Resolutions/ Approval
W Decision No. Date Content rate
61/NQ-HDQT- Approval of measures to ensure that the share offerin
10 2 e : S g
DNC SRS complies with foreign ownership limits %
62/NQ-HDPQT- Approval of the registration dossier for the private
. DNC ity lacement of shares to increase charter capital Hoten
12 63/NQ-HPQT- 27/08/2024 A@Justment of the plan for using funds raised from the 100%
DNC private placement
64/NQ-HDPQT- Policy implementation for business operations and
13 DNC 28/08/2024 lasset leasing at the Dong Nai Concrete Enterprise | 100%
Branch
14 65/NQ-HDQT- 13/09/2024 ?mplementatmn of. the private placement plan to 100%
DNC increase charter capital
66/NQ-HDPQT- Approval of the registration dossier for the private "
el DNC ISH0RE0S placement of shares to increase charter capital 100
67/NQ-HDQT- Introduction of personnel for the appointment of the “
1 DNC /iR Company’s Deputy General Director 10076
68/NQ-HPQT- Adjustment and supplementation of the plan for using
17 DNC 23/09/2024 funds from the private .placeme.nt and approval gf 100%
measures to ensure compliance with foreign ownership
limits
69/NQ-HDPQT- | ,, Approval of the registration dossier for the private o
i DNC /R0 lacement of shares to increase charter capital 100%
19 | TONQHBQT-1 /1012024 | Appointment of the Deputy General Director 100%
Resolutions of the 19th meeting
- Approval of business performance results for Q2 and
Q3/2024;
- Approval of the business plan for Q4/2024;
- Agreement on the proposed list of leadership and
71/NQ-HDPQT- " management personnel for 2024; o
20 DNC LoA1Galek ], Approval of the report on labor and salary situation Lt
for 2024;
- Approval of provisional salary payments and social
insurance contributions for the Deputy General
Director, Head of the Audit Committee, and Chief
Accountant.
| 72/NQ-HPQT- 21/10/2024 mplementatlon of .the private placement of shares to 100%
DNC increase charter capital
2 73/NQ-HPQT- 04/11/2024 Approval of the supplementary list of leadership and 100%
DNC management personnel for 2024
73 74/NQ-HDPQT- 20/11/2024 Approval of the results of the private placement of 100%
DNC shares
75/NQ-HPQT- Approval of amendments to the Company’s Charter to N
ik DNC e/ LB reflect the new charter capital after the share offering i
25 76/NQ-HDPQT- 04/12/2024 Resolu’Flon on personnel matters for the company’s 100%
DNC [Executive Board
77/NQ-HDPQT- Adjustment of the plan for using the proceeds from the
26 DNC 04/12/2024 |private placement of shares to increase the company's | 100%
charter capital
27 78/NQ-HBPQT- 24/12/2024 D{srmssal and appointment of the Deputy General 100%
DNC Director
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No. ResPl.u e Date Content ARpTOva)
Decision No. rate
3 79/NQ-HPQT- 24/12/2024 Approval of contracts and transactions with related 100%
DNC arties
29 80/NQ-HPQT- 27/12/2024 Approyal of provisional salary payments for Company 100%
DNC executives
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APPENDIX 2

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ITS RELATED PERSONS OR BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND
ITS MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, INTERNAL PERSONS, AND RELATED PERSONS

(Attached: 2024 corporate governance report — Section VII)

ID/ Business Time of Resolution No. or Decision
Name of ; T Registration ; No. approved by General ;
No.| organization/ | Relationship withthe | Lo BRO) Address ~ [(TANSActions wo g of Shareholders/ | COtents quantity, totalvalue of |
i ey s Company with the ; ; transaction
individual No., Date of Issue, Chsiian Board of Directors (if any,
Place of Issue pany specifying date of issue)
Dong Nai Related organization of the 09 Huynh Van Nghe, Resolution No. 50/NQ- | Contract for the sale of Long Thanh
1 [Construction Joint| insider (Mr. Tran Anh 3600510590  |Buu Long Ward, Bien| Year 2024 HDQT-DNC Tuynel Bricks. Sales
Stock Company Diing) Hoa, Dong Nai dated 22/01/2024 Value: 1.113.190.000 VND
No.: 3600274914
Related organization of the| Date of issue:
; jor shareholder- 07/08/2015 12 Huynh Van Nghe :
Sonadezi Moo Y ghe, Resolution No. 50/NQ- g
. : (SONADEZI Place of issue: | Buu Long, Bien Hoa Waste collection contract .
2 E t] . 5 ; : HDQT-DNC
insider (Mr. Tran Anh Planning and Province i
Diing) Investment of Dong|
Nai
No.: 3600259296
Date of issue: 48 August
L Nad War Related.oiiizﬁaéxlf[)g orihe ] 1/5/2921 .| Revolution, Quyet Resoliition No. SOMQ- Domestic water contract
3 Point Stock majo el Place of issue: Thang Ward, Bien | Year 2024 HDQT-DNC Purchasing
Company (SONADEZI Department of - | o, oo Done Nai P Sy Value: 89.369.950 VND.
CORPORATION) Planning and Pl
[nvestment of Dong
Nai
No.: 3600449307
Related organization of the| Date of issue: No. 113 - 116. Lot
Sonadezi An Binh majé)(;:l:gtéozl?er 12/01/2000 C2, Road 9, An, Binh Resolution No. 32/NQ- Concrete purchase transaction -
4 point Stock ¢ Place of issue: | Residential Area, | Year 2024 HDQT-DNC Value: 51.981.481 VND HIEie
CORPORATION) and the | pe artment of : . ? and sale
Company . s ¥ partment ol | Bijen Hoa City, Dong dated 16/01/2023
insider (Mr. Truong Viét Planning and e—
Hoang Son) Investment of Dong
Nai
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1D/ Business ; Resolution No. or Decision
Name of Registration Timg.ut No. approved by General
No.| organization/ | RemGonmshipwithihe |- ppogesmRrc) Address transactions| s o of Shareholdersy | COMtEN quantity, totalvalue of - o,
S Company with the : : transaction
individual No., Date of Issue, Compban Board of Directors (if any,
Place of Issue pany specifying date of issue)
. . _|Related organization of the No. 121, Phan Chu .
. ; : . Resolution No. 32/NQ-
5 i(;:tg_ia;;;l(ousmg major shareholder 1600322445 Trinh - Quang Vinh Year 2024 SOI:IID(E)]T—F)NC Q Concrete sales contract Sales
Compan (SONADEZI Ward - Bien Hoa City ot 16/ 1005 Value: 223.356.481 VND
pany CORPORATION) - Dong Nai. Gy
No.: 3600810322 Resolution No. 79/NQ- Auat fease contraet
Date of issue: |\, 1 Nhon Trach 2 i s Value: 2276435307 VND | €SI
Nhon Trach 2 Major shareholder of the 04/05/2023 B S dated 24/12/2024 R Qs
Reinforced Company and a related Pl fissue: Tricustiial Bagk, o
6 |- LI o ace ot 1ssue. 25B, Hiep Phuoc | Year 2024
oncrete organization of insider (Mr.| Department of Financial
: . % > Town, Nhon Trach, Interest expense
Corporation Huynh Trung Hiéu) Planning and Dong Nai . : borrowing
Investment of Dong] transaction value: 317,589,040 VND P—
Nai
No.: 3600890938 8th Fl S
Related organization of the| ~Date of issue: t.] A
. . major shareholder 26/6/2019 Building, No. 1, Road Resolution No. TO/N
, fo'nadea Services (SONADEZI Plae of iigie: 1 Bl'en Hoa 1 esolution No. Q- Waste collection contract. '
oint - Stock Industrial Park, An | Year 2024 HDPQT-DNC Purchasing,
CORPORATION) and the | Department of : 2 Value: 0 VND
Company o X : Binh Ward, Bien Hoa dated 24/12/2024
insider (Mr. Tran Anh Planning and ; ;
~ City, Dong Nai
Diing) Investment of Dong| Provi
i rovince
Nai
Mr. Tran Anh Dién is No.:3603497972
. - BOD’s member and Date of issue:
"lcl;t:] ;}rll?;t]i\cl)i;a General Director of DND, 16/01/2023 46-48 Nguyen Co Resoliitisin e, . ; '
. and is currently General Place of issue: | Thach, An Loi Dong R ; oncrete purchase transaction ——
B [Blataslal | Director of The Gioi Nha | pepartment of | Ward, Thu Duc City, Year2024 | AYNQHBOT-DNG Value: 202.212.964 VND UERIESIE
Supermarket Joint ; : partment 0 dated 10/04/2023
S Construction Material Planning and HCMC
tock Company : Ing an
Supermarket Joint Stock Investment of
Company HCMC
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APPENDIX 3

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND COMPANIES WHERE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, AND OTHER MANAGERS ARE FOUNDING

MEMBERS OR HAVE SERVED AS BOARD MEMBERS OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS WITHIN THE PAST THREE

(03) YEARS
(Attached: 2024 corporate governance report — Section VII)
1D/ Business . R‘e§olutmn ST
Registration Time of | Decision No. approved
N Name.of (?r!ganlzatlon Relationship with the Certificate (BRC) Address tl‘all.SﬂctIOIISI by General Meeting of | Content, quantity, .total Note
individual Company with the | Shareholders/ Board of | value of transaction
No., Date of Issue, " "
Company Directors (if any,
Place of Issue o :
specifying date of issue)
Mr. Trin Anh Diing Member
Done Nai Construction (géh: glogr_d 0: Dlr?%%?)m?d 09 Huynh Van Nghe, Buu Resolution No. 50/NQ- Brick sales contract
| |Pong neral irector of LIN'J, 1S 3600510590 Long Ward, Bien Hoa, | Year 2024 HDQT-DNC Value: 1.113.190.000 | Sales
Joint Stock Company |currently the BOD’s Chairman Done Nai dated 0
of Dong Nai Construction Erafl ated 22/01/20 VND
Joint Stock Company.
R Mr. Trén Anh Diing is BOD’s , )
Sor}adem Byitofiment Member and General Director b gl Yan Nghez iy oshifitn Mo SURT Waste collection contract. :
2 | Joint Stock Company : 3600274914 Long, Bien Hoa City, | Year 2024 HDQT-DNC Purchasing]
(SZE) of DND, and is currently Daite Mt Provines dated 22/01/2024 Value: 12.332.866 VND
BOD’s Member of SZE & Al
3 .: 3603497972
Mr. Tran Anh Dién is No §
BOD’s Memb 4G | Date of issue:
The Gioi Nha 2§ Viember and tencra 16/01/2023 46-48 Nguyen Co Thach, Resolution No. 35/NQ-
: . Director of DND, and is : Purchase of concrete .
3 | Construction Material currently the Generz;l Direotor|  Place of issue: An Loi Dong Ward, Thu | Year 2024 HPQT-DNC Valus: 202212964 VND Purchasing|
Joint Stock C Duc City, HCMC ue: 202.212.
oint Stock Company |~ = " 'Nha Construction I;T::]:ET:;; Zf uc City, dated 10/04/2023
Material Joi k C
aterial Joint Stock Company Investment of HCMC
No.: 3600449307
Mr. Truong Viét Hoang Son is]  Date of issue: No. 113 - 116, Lot C2,
; . . | BOD’s Chairman of DND, 12/01/2000 Road 9, An Binh Resolution No. 32/NQ- Concrete purchase
4 Sona1deZI A0 By Tom} and is currently a BOD’s PI Pigkng: Residential Area, Bien | Year 2024 HDBQT-DNC transaction LTSk
Stock Company 3 : ace of 1ssue: : i and sale
Member of Sonadezi An Binh Department of Hoa City, Dong Nai dated 16/01/2023 Value: 51.981.481 VND
Joint Stock Company Planning and Province
Investment of Dong
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; Resolution No. or
ID/ Business ; Fie
o . o Regiatiation Time ?f Decision No. app.roved .
No. Name-ofc-)r.gamzatlon Relationship with the Certificate (BRC) Addveis tran.sactlons by General Meeting of | Content, quantity, .total Note
individual Company with the | Shareholders/ Board of | value of transaction
No., Date of Issue, . :
Company Directors (if any,
Place of Issue S :
specifying date of issue)
Nai
No.: 3600810322 Resolution No. 79/NQ- Asset lease contract
Date of issue: HDPQT-DNC Value: 2.276.435.307 | Leasing
Major shareholder of the 04/05/2023 No. 1, Nhon Trach 2 dated 24/12/2024 VND
Ahan Lrach 2 Company and a related issue: Industrial Park, Road
5 | Reinforced Concrete npany ancart Place of issue: sty D Year 2024
Corporation organization of insider (Mr. Department of 25B, Hiep Phuoc Towr!, ‘ ‘
Huynh Trung Hiéu) Planning and Nhon Trach, Dong Nai Interest expense Financial
Investment of Dong transaction value: borrowing
Nai 317,589,040 VND cost
No.: 3600890938
Related organization of the o) S Su1 Floor, Symoest
26/6/2019 ildi .
: ; : major shareholder G Bm_]dmg, ety Roafi L Resolution No. 79/NQ- .
Sonadezi Service Joint Place of issue: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Waste collection contract. ,
6 (SONADEZI : Year 2024 HDQT-DNC Purchasing]
Stock Company Department of Park, An Binh Ward, Value: 0 VND
CORPORATION) and the A : ; ; dated 24/12/2024
‘o 3 5 Planning and Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
insider (Mr. Tran Anh Diing) ”
Investment of Dong Province
Nai
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DONG MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIEINAM
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom— Happiness

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Dong Nai, day 26 month 3 year 2025

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
Re: Inspection and Supervision of Business Operations of Dong Nai Material &
Building Investment Joint Stock Company in 2024
To: The General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59 passed by the National Assembly on June 17,
2020,

- Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock
Company (DNC);

- Pursuant to the functions, duties, and operational regulations of the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the results of
inspection and supervision of business operations and presents an evaluation report on the
activities of the Supervisory Board in 2024 at DNC with the following contents:

I. FINANCIAL STATEMENT APPRAISAL:

Based on the 2024 financial statements of the Company, which have been audited by
RSM Vietnam Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd., the Supervisory Board has conducted an
appraisal and reached the following conclusions:

The 2024 financial statements reasonably reflect the material aspects of the Company's
financial position as of December 31, 2024, as well as the results of its business operations
and cash flows for the fiscal year ending on the same date. The financial statements comply
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System,
and relevant legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of financial statements.
II. RESULTS OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS MONITORING AND FINANCIAL
STATUS:

1. Business Operations in 2024:

The implementation results of the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders
regarding the business plan are reflected through several key indicators as follows:

Actual 2024 (million VND) | Performance rate (%)
No. Indicator 292.3
(million Plan Actual | Compared | Compared
VND) to 2023 | to the plan
1 | Total revenue 123.440 93.192 97.263 78,79 104,37
17 Intra-company 0 666
revenue
i g | REVEBUEIHOMEUOUS | | 4yg-507 94.510 79,56
and services
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13 | {peometron 2.305 18 0,78
financing activities
1.4 | Other income 2.344 2.069 88,27
2 | Profit before tax 5.842 615 (7.072)
3 | Net profit after tax 5.842 615| (7.072)
4 | laxpaymentstothe | 3, 400 | 54000 | 43948 11723 | 12926
state budget
5 Capltal construction 1334 931
investment

(Source: 2024 Audited Financial Statements)

Total revenue in 2024 reached 97.263 billion VND, achieving 104,37% of the annual target
but only 78,79% compared to 2023. Net profit from business activities was 590 million
VND, while profit before and after tax recorded a loss of 7.072 billion VND. The primary
reasons for missing the targets set by the General Meeting of Shareholders include:

- The economic situation remained challenging, with the domestic real estate sector
growing slowly. Many construction projects were either not implemented or faced delays,
negatively impacting the Company's sales of construction materials.

- Legal procedures and documentation related to project execution, as well as
compensation and land clearance for quarries, faced significant difficulties, affecting
mining operations.

- Additionally, the Company's tax obligations to the state budget in 2024 were
substantial, amounting to 43.948 million VND (with 70.750 million VND already paid
during the year), significantly impacting the working capital turnover and the overall
business performance of the Company.

1.1 Business Performance of Units:

1.1.1 Product Performance Compared to 2024 Targets:

Plan 2024 Actual 2024 Actual / Plan (%)
Product Unit
Volume | Revenue | COGS | Volume | Revenue | Volume | Revenue
TC 5 Quarry | Tons 490.000 37.030 | 30.898 | 591.861 44.832 120,79 121,07
TC 5 Quarry | Tons 30.788 | 23.528 32.747 106,36
Mixed rock Tons 480.000 22.338 | 18.028 | 654.891 29.749 | 136,44 133,18
Clay m’ 130.000 8.450 5.500 | 48.891 2.998 37,61 35,48
Concrete m’ 2.019
Tuynel Pieces | 16.000.000 | 17.280 | 16.784 10.371
Brick
Other
Business 8.094 6.553 5.207 64,33
Activities
Total 93.192 | 77.763 95.176

(Source: 2024 Audited Financial Statements)
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1.1.2 Performance in 2024 Compared to 2023

Actual 2024 Actual 2023 Sl zozf‘f/’;‘““a' 2023

Product | Unit >

Volume | Revenue Gross Volume | Revenue Gross Volume | Revenue Gross

Profit Profit Profit

ggasrry Tons | 591.861 | 44.832 | 10.993 | 594549 | 48.598 | 13.466 | 99.55| 9225 | 81.64
TCS Tons 32.747 7.661 17.143 3.227 191,02 | 237,40
Quarry
g’;’fd Tons | 654.891 29.749 6.759 228.783 10.759 966 | 286.25 276,50 | 699,69
Clay m | 48891| 2998 | 902|  98218| 6384 | 2.261| 49,78 | 4696 | 39,89
Concrete m’ 2.019 | (2.997) 29.647 34.102 | (1.772) 0,00 5,92 1 169,13
g;{: ‘:’1 Pieces 10371 | (672) | 11.786.244 | 13.816 | 2.467 0,00 75,07
Other
Business 5.207 1.381 5.132 676 101,46 | 204,29
Activities
Total 95.176 | 16.366 118.791 | 18.064

(Source: 2024 Audited Financial Statements)

1.2 Business Performance of Units:
1.2.1 Tan Cang S Construction Stone Quarry:

In 2024, the sales volume of stone at Tan Cang 5 Quarry reached 120,79% of the annual

plan, while revenue achieved 121,07% of the plan

Compared to the same period in 2023, the sales volume reached 99,55%, revenue was

92,25%, and gross profit was 81,64%.

*

+

-

Legal Procedure Difficulties:

Investment Certificate: In 2024, the investment certificate was adjusted for the second
time on September 5, 2024, setting the project execution deadline to November 23,
2024. However, the adjusted timeframe was too short—only two months, making it
impossible for the company to complete land-related procedures. On February 27, 2025,
the Department of Planning and Investment approved the third adjustment, extending
the project execution period to February 26, 2028.

Land Lease Contracts: The company has not yet renewed several land lease contracts
that expired in November 2023

+ Regarding Land Issues: There are still many unresolved difficulties. The company has

not been able to carry out land-use conversion or lease procedures because the project
implementation timeline on the investment certificate has expired. Additionally, some
land plots cannot be transferred to the company’s ownership. The company has
registered the land area that needs to be reclaimed in 2025 with the People’s Committee
of Bien Hoa City, but it has not yet been included in the list of projects approved for
land reclamation by the relevant authorities.

The application for a permit to increase the mining depth to cote -80m has not yet been
processed as the company is awaiting guidance from the 2024 Mineral Law, which will
come into effect in July 2025.

2024 Supervision Report Page 3 of 10



Current Mining Status: Currently, the remaining reserves under the mining license of
Tan Cang 5 Quarry are still substantial, estimated at over 7 million cubic meters. The
Tan Cang stone source is of very high quality; however, extraction has not yet been
possible due to legal land procedures and safety distance restrictions for blasting
operations.

1.2.2 Thien Tan 5 Construction Stone Quarry:

Performance compared to the 2024 plan: The quarry's stone sales volume reached
136,44%, clay sales volume reached 37,61%, and total revenue from stone and clay reached
133,18% of the planned target.

Performance compared to 2023: The stone sales volume reached 286.25%, total revenue
from stone and clay reached 191,02%, and the gross profit from stone and clay reached
237,4% of the previous year's figures.

* Legal Procedure Challenges:

+ Investment Policy: The company has made significant efforts to complete the necessary
procedures for adjusting the investment policy decision, but approval was not obtained
in 2024. On March 4, 2025, the People's Committee of Dong Nai Province issued a
decision approving the first adjustment, extending the project timeline until February
19, 2028.

+ Land Issues: The company has been unable to complete land-related procedures,
including acquiring land from compensated households, changing land use purposes,
and leasing land as per regulations. This is due to the delay in adjusting the project
timeline in the 2020 investment policy decision. Although the company has registered a
2025 land use plan, the provincial authorities have not yet approved the Vinh Cuu
district's land use plan, preventing land recovery.

* Current Mining Status: At present, the remaining exploitable reserves of Thien Tan 5
Quarry, as per its mining license, are estimated at over 5 million cubic meters.

1.2.3 Dong Nai Concrete Enterprise Branch: In 2024, the enterprise suffered a loss of

nearly 3 billion VND.

+ In August 2024, the management board implemented a plan to lease out assets, but no
suitable partner was found to rent the station.

+ In December 2024, the People’s Committee of Bien Hoa City issued a notice to reclaim
the land for the construction of a waterway traffic police headquarters under the Dong
Nai Provincial Police Department.

1.2.4 Long Thanh Tuynel Brick Factory:

In 2024, the factory recorded a loss of 672 million VND. The downturn in the real estate
market showed no signs of recovery, leading to a slowdown in the construction industry.
As a result, brick sales declined sharply, causing significant inventory buildup.
Additionally, the high land lease costs imposed by the government contributed to an
increase in production costs.
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During the year, the factory ceased production for the first five months of 2024 (from
February to the end of June). By the end of 2024, the brick inventory remained at
approximately 8 million bricks.

1.2.5 Dong Nai New Materials Factory:

The acceptance and handover process for the production line has not been completed,
so it cannot yet be put into operation.

2. Implementation of the General Meeting of Shareholders' resolution:

- Payment of salaries and remuneration to the Board of Directors and the Supervisory

Board as per the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Signing an audit contract for the 2024 financial statements with RSM Vietnam

Auditing & Consulting Co., Ltd.,...

- Completion of the capital increase according to the private placement plan, with the
following results:
+ Number of shares offered: 4.000.000 shares at an offering price of VND 18.200
per share
+ Total proceeds from the offering: 72.800.000.000 VND
+ Total costs (excluding VAT): 420.000.000 VND
+ Net proceeds from the offering: 72.380.000.000 VND
3. Changes in Fixed Assets:
Tangible Fixed Assets:

+ In 2024, the original cost increased by 282 million VND. Specifically: the lightning
protection system at Long Thanh Brick Factory cost 30,4 million VND, an office
container cost 41,5 million VND, and the relocation of the office building at Tan Cang
5 Quarry cost 210 million VND.

+ The decrease in fixed assets included transportation and transmission equipment with
an original cost of 595 million VND due to the liquidation of a Toyota Camry 2.4. The
remaining book value was 0 VND, and the liquidation sale price was 174 million VND,
resulting in other income of 161 million VND.

+ As of December 31, 2024, the remaining book value of tangible fixed assets was 79.727
million VND, of which 1.820 million VND was used as collateral to secure loans. The
original cost of fully depreciated tangible fixed assets still in use was 46.388 million
VND.

3. Accounts Receivable from Customers:

The total accounts receivable from customers as of December 31, 2024, was VND
21.764.014.686, with details for each unit as follows:
- Tuynel Bricks: 2.672.523.724 VND
- Concrete: 8.128.372.327 VND
- Tan Cang 5 Construction Stone Quarry: 1.956.504.119 VND
- Thien Tan 5 Construction Stone Quarry: 5.237.940.259 VND
- Other Sectors: 3.768.673.957 VND
The total doubtful debts as of December 31, 2024, amounted to 8.053.912.799 VND.,
with an allowance for doubtful debts of 7.551.669.301 VND already set aside.
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4. Shareholder Status:

As of March 17, 2025, the date of finalizing the list of attendees for the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, the total number of shareholders of DNC is 183
shareholders, including:

- Institutional shareholders: 05 shareholders, holding 11.813.577 shares, accounting

for 92,05% of the total shares.

Of which: + Sonadezi Corporation: 4.619.340 shares, accounting for 35,99%

+ Dong Nai No. 2 Construction: 3.134.737 shares, accounting for 24,43%

+ Nhon Trach 2 Reinforced Concrete Corporation: 3.020.000 shares,
accounting for 23,53%

+ Dai Viet Securities Incorporation: 1.009.500 shares, accounting for 7,87%

- Individual shareholder: 178 shareholders, holding 1.020.423 shares, accounting for

7,95% of the total shares.
Among them, foreign shareholders: 03 shareholders, holding 10.100 shares,
accounting for 0,31%.

III. ASSESSMENT OF THE MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, GENERAL DIRECTOR, OTHER EXECUTIVES, AND
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

1. Results of Supervision of the Board of Directors (BOD):

- The BOD consists of 05 members, including 01 member with concurrent roles. The
BOD has assigned specific tasks to each member and operates in accordance with its
functions and duties as stipulated by law and the Company’s Charter.

- The BOD has implemented the resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, organized meetings, and regularly sought opinions in writing to address
matters within its authority as per legal regulations and the Company’s Charter. The
Supervisory Board assesses that the BOD’s activities have been timely in meeting the
requirements of production and business operations.

- The BOD regularly monitors the activities of the Management Board, provides strategic
direction for production and business plans, and oversees management activities within its
scope of authority. It has also implemented and executed the resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders in production and business activities.

2. Results of Supervision of the General Director and Other Executives of the
Company:

- As of the end of 2024, the General Director’s Board consists of 03 members (01 Deputy
General Director appointed on October 1, 2024, and 01 Deputy General Director appointed
on December 24, 2024). The General Director is the legal representative of the Company.
- In managing and operating activities, the General Director and other executives have
implemented the resolutions and decisions of the BOD, fulfilling their functions, duties,
and authority as regulated.
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3. Assessment of Coordination Between the Supervisory Board, the Board of
Directors, the General Director, and Shareholders:

- The Supervisory Board (SB) was invited to attend meetings of the Board of Directors
(BOD), provided with requested information, and collaborated with the BOD and the
General Director to stay informed about the Company’s operations. Based on this, the SB
made proposals, discussed, and contributed opinions to ensure that the Company’s
activities are appropriate and safeguard the interests of shareholders.

- Regarding Shareholders: The SB did not receive any requests or complaints from
shareholders.

4. Report on the Evaluation of Transactions Between the Company and Related
Organizations or Individuals ...

- Transactions related to the above-mentioned matters were conducted in compliance with
the Company’s governance regulations, ensuring transparency and fairness in protecting
shareholders’ interests.

- The Company’s governance situation in 2024 was fully reported regarding related
transactions, and the information was disclosed on the Company’s website on January 20,
2025, and submitted to the State Securities Commission and the Ho Chi Minh City Stock
Exchange as per regulations.

IV. SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD:
1. Assessment of the Supervisory Board’s and Supervisors’ Activities in 2024:

The Supervisory Board for the term IV (2021-2026) consists of three members. In 2024,
the Head of the Supervisory Board worked full-time at the Company. The SB organized
meetings with full participation of its members to discuss and agree on contributions and
to establish a plan for inspection and supervision activities. During the year, the SB
performed its functions and duties in accordance with legal regulations, the Company’s
Charter, and the SB’s operating regulations. The tasks carried out in 2024 as per the plan
are as follows:

- Conducted inspections and supervision of the Board of Directors’ activities and oversaw
the management and operation of production and business activities by the General
Director.

- Reviewed and evaluated the 2023 financial report and presented it at the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders; reviewed the quarterly financial reports for 2024;
monitored the recording of documents and accounting books; and reviewed compliance
with information disclosure regulations,...

- The SB monitored the Company’s production and business activities through financial
reports, financial supervision reports, and other Company reports to provide timely
opinions, proposals, and recommendations to improve operations and ensure compliance
with legal regulations.

- The SB identified its limitations as follows: it did not participate in the physical
inventory of assets, cash on hand, materials, goods, or work-in-progress as of December
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31, 2024; did not verify or reconcile input invoices and documents declared for deductions
and recorded in 2024; did not organize reconciliation or confirmation of receivables and
payables; and conducted inspections using sampling methods based on data from financial
reports, accounting records, invoices, and documents provided by the Company at the time
of inspection,..

2. Remuneration, Operating Expenses, and Other Benefits of the Supervisory Board
and Its Individual Members.

The salaries, remuneration, and bonuses of the Supervisory Board are implemented in
accordance with the resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and
settled based on Circular No. 28 dated September 1, 2016, of the Ministry of Labor,
Invalids, and Social Affairs.

During the year, the Supervisory Board did not incur any operating expenses. Details
are as follows:

Fullname Salaries .
b Remuneration
No Fullname (million (million VND
VND) illion )
s Head of Supervisory Board
1 nh
Ho Thi Minh Tam | ) - ointed on 08/4/2024) i
Head of Supervisory Board
2 B D 1
han Thuy Doan. | . issed on 08/472024) ¢
3 | Nguyen Thi Lien | Member 48
4 | Le Thi Yen Member 48
Total 209 112

3. Summary of the Supervisory Board's Meetings and Conclusions,
Recommendations; Results of Monitoring the Company's Operations and Financial
Status.

Throughout the year, the Supervisory Board regularly exchanged information related to
supervisory activities and conducted three meetings, with the main contents as follows:

- Approval of the 2023 supervisory results to be presented in the report to the 2024 General
Meeting of Shareholders;

- Election of the Head of the Supervisory Board;

- Approval of the nine-month supervisory results to be submitted in a report to the Board
of Directors and the General Director.

4. The Supervisory Board's Activity Plan for 2025:

* Operating Budget Plan for 2025: VND 20.000.000/year (covering professional training;
meetings, discussions, and workshops; travel expenses; hiring experts, etc.)

* Activity Plan: Based on the functions and duties stipulated in the Enterprise Law, the
Company’s Charter, and operational regulations, the Supervisory Board has developed
the 2025 plan with the following key tasks:

2024 Supervision Report Page 8 of 10



- Conduct inspection and supervision of the Board of Directors' activities and oversee the
management and operation of production and business activities by the General
Director;

- Review and evaluate quarterly and annual financial reports;

- Monitor the Company’s production and business activities through financial reports,
financial monitoring reports, other company reports, and ensure compliance with legal
regulations;

- Coordinate with the Company’s functional departments/units to review compliance with
legal regulations, the Company’s Charter, resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, resolutions of the Board of Directors, and the Company’s internal
regulations in production and business activities, as well as handle other tasks as they
arise,...

- Monitoring the implementation of previous year's recommendations.

S. Observations and Recommendations of the Supervisory Board:
5.1 Observations:
- Certain unresolved issues from previous years still remain:

+ Long Phuoc 1 Industrial Cluster Project — Long Thanh District, Dong Nai Province:
As recorded in the accounting books as of December 31, 2024, the capital contribution
from investors amounting to 700.000.000 VND and the project preparation costs
amounting to 720.212.631 VND are still recognized and have not yet been processed.

+ DNC Building Project: The project was initiated in 2008 but has been on hold to date.
As of December 31, 2024, the business costs of the project are recorded at 945.711.936
VND.

+ Project of the New Material Factory (Non-fired Bricks): The project was approved
by the Board of Directors in 2017 and an adjustment to the project was approved in
November 2018. In April 2018, the Company signed Contract No. 181/2018/HD-DNC for
the installation of technological equipment. In September 2020, the production line began
trial operations, but to date, it has not yet been officially accepted, handed over, or put into
full operation.

- Regarding accounting work: The Company has relatively fully and promptly complied

with the requirements for preparing and submitting reports and fulfilling its obligations to

the State. Accounting records are maintained adequately as per regulations, accounting

entries are relatively clear, and the arrangement and storage of documents are reasonable,

facilitating inspection and data reconciliation. However, the fulfillment of obligations to

the State budget has been delayed due to the Company’s lack of sufficient funds to make

payments.

5.2 Recommendations

- The Supervisory Board acknowledges that in 2024, the Company’s leadership has made
significant efforts in debt recovery. However, many outstanding debts remain
unresolved. The Company’s leadership needs to continue implementing more proactive
measures to handle and recover debts to effectively utilize the Company’s working
capital;
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- Regarding the Tan Cang 5 Stone Quarry and Th.Tan 5 Stone Quarry: To avoid financial
risks for the Company, the Management Board needs to complete all legal procedures
and documentation to commence exploitation;

- Regarding the Long Thanh Tuynel Brick Factory: The Management Board needs to
review the production plan and enhance sales and product distribution efforts to clear
inventory. Measures should be implemented to manage costs efficiently, reduce
production costs, and improve competitiveness with similar products in the market;

- Regarding the New Material Factory Project (Non-fired Bricks): The production line
has been installed and trial operations have started, but it has not yet been accepted or
handed over for official use. The Management Board is requested to review all related
documentation and devise a plan to promptly finalize the project, as well as reassess its
effectiveness to propose suitable solutions;

- Regarding the Long Phuoc Industrial Cluster Project: The Management Board is
recommended to review and propose a plan to settle all revenues and expenditures
related to this project.

- Regarding the DNC Building Project: The Management Board should urgently propose
a business plan that complies with regulations to increase revenue and bring efficiency
to the Company.

- The Management Board needs to expedite coordination with relevant authorities to
reassess the land rental rates for the plots currently used for the Company’s business
operations, ensuring that costs and business performance are accurately reflected in each
financial year.

The above is the Report on the inspection and supervision of the Company’s production

and business activities, as well as the evaluation report on the activities of the Supervisory

Board in 2024. Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for

consideration and approval.

Respectfully submitted.

Recipients: O/B. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
- Asabove; HEAD OF THE BOARD

s, i ‘//77 W Zﬂ /fl sy

Ho Thi Minh Tam
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street (formerly National Highway 1K),
Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

Management of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company") hereby presents its report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial

year ended 31 December 2024.
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND MANAGEMENT

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and on the date of this report include:

Full name Position

Mr. Truong Viet Hoang Son Chairman (appointed on 08 April 2024)
Mr. Truong Cuong Chairman (dismissed on 08 April 2024)
Mr. Truong Cuong Member (from 08 April 2024)

Mr. Tran Anh Dien Member

Mr. Tran Anh Dung Member (resigned on 17 February 2025)
Mr. Vu Trong Dung Member

Mr. Nguyen Tien Toan Member (dismissed on 08 April 2024)

Members of the Supervisory Committee during the year and on the date of this report include:

Full name Paosition

Ms. Ho Thi Minh Tam Head (appointed on 08 April 2024)

Ms. Phan Thuy Doan Head (dismissed on 08 April 2024)

Ms. Nguyen Thi Lien Member

Ms. Le Thi Yen Member (resigned on 19 February 2025)

Members of management during the year and on the date of this report include;

Full name Position

Mr. Tran Anh Dien General Director (appointed on 05 December 2024)

Mr. Tran Anh Dung General Director (dismissed on 05 December 2024)

Mr. Huynh Trung Hieu Vice General Director (appointed on 24 December 2024)

Ms. Pham Thai Hoai Huong Vice General Director (from 01 October 2024 to 20 February 2025)
Mr. Nguyen Tien Toan Vice General Director (dismissed on 15 January 2025)

AUDITOR

The accompanying financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 were
audited by RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited, a member firm of RSM International.

(See the next page)
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street (formerly National Highway 1K),
Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT

The Company's management is responsible for preparing the financial statements of each period which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the results of its operations and its cash flows.
In preparing these financial statements, management is required to:

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently.
* Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

= State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any departures that need to
be disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business; and

* Design and implement the internal control system effectively for a fair preparation and presentation of the
financial statements so as to mitigate error or fraud.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and ensure that the financial
statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and
prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam. Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Management confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing these
financial statements.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

In management’s opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
financial year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System, and prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam.

General Director

Dong Nai, 07 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT www.rsm.global/vietnam
To: Shareholders
Members of the Board of Directors
Members of management
DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
y
Report on the financial statements R
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint
Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Company”) prepared on 07 March 2025 as set out from page
05 to page 34, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the income A
statement, and cash-flow statement for the financial year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements. 3

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
relevant legislation as to the preparation and presentation of financial statements and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
ASSURANCE | TAX | CONSULTING

RSM Vietnam is a member of the RSM network and trades as RSM. RSM Is the trading name used by the members of the RSM network
Each member of the RSM network is an independent accounting and consuiting firm which practices in its own right.
The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity in any jurisdiction
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Dong
Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the results of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System issued under Circular 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 and Circular 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 by Ministry of Finance and
relevant legislation as to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

uc Thi Van Le Viet Ha
Vice General Director Auditor
Audit Practice Registration Certificate: Audit Practice Registration Certificate:
0172-2023-026-1 4732-2024-026-1

RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited
Ho Chi Minh City, 07 March 2025
As disclosed in Note 2.1 to the financial statements, the accompanying financial statements are not intended

to present the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows in accordance with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street (formerly National Highway 1K),
Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

£

Form'B 01 -
TUVAN

As at 31 December 2024 75

Expressed in VND

As at As at

ASSETS Code| Notes 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100 53,263,331,043 34,454,582,219
I. Cash and cash equivalents 110 23,515,577,887 4,639,067,192
1. Cash 144 4.1 23,515,577,887 4,639,067,192

Il. Current financial investments 120 203,390,685 -
1. Held to maturity investments 123 203,390,685 -

lll. Current account receivables 130 16,359,650,595 19,588,958,097
1. Trade receivables 131 4.2 21,764,014,386 23,375,529,037
2. Advances to suppliers 132 1,750,021,790 2,595,218,774
3. Other current receivables 136 397,283,720 520,235,690
4. Provision for doubtful debts 137 | 4.3 (7,551,669,301) (6,902,025,404)
IV. Inventories 140 10,170,684,635 9,419,300,547
1. Inventories 141 4.4 10,170,684,635 9,419,300,547
V. Other current assets 150 3,014,027,241 807,256,383
1. Current prepayments 151 2,262,770,858 56,000,000
2. Tax and other receivables from the state budget | 153 | 4.10 751,256,383 751,256,383
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 149,522,273,313 | 150,961,834,483
l. Non-current account receivables 210 13,201,709,318 8,120,831,678
1. Other non-current receivables 216 4.5 13,201,709,318 8,120,831,678
Il. Fixed assets 220 10,309,577,825 14,020,857,732
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 4.8 10,259,577,813 13,960,857,724
Cost 222 79,726,714,984 80,040,306,003
Accumulated depreciation 223 (69,467,137,171)| (66,079,448,279)

2. Intangible fixed assets 227 50,000,012 60,000,008
Cost 228 359,296,027 359,296,027
Accumulated amortisation 229 (309,296,015) (299,296,019)
lll. Non-current assets in process 240 22,356,347,967 22,003,508,543
1. Construction in progress 242 46 22,356,347,967 22,003,508,543
IV. Other non-current assets 260 103,654,638,203 | 106,816,636,530
1. Non-current prepayments 261 4.7 103,654,638,203 | 106,816,636,530
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200) 270 202,785,604,356 | 185,416,416,702

(See the next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street (formerly National Highway 1K),
Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2024

Form B 01 - DN

Expressed in VND

As at As at
RESOURCES Code| Notes 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
C. LIABILITIES 300 38,473,659,758 86,412,264,043
. Current liabilities 310 24,801,031,236 69,712,154,090
1. Trade payables 31 4.9 6,829,323,933 20,887,478,196
2. Advances from customers 312 780,783,834 817,654,944
3. Taxes and amounts payable to the state budget | 313 | 4.10 9,871,398,715 36,672,968,403
4. Payables to employees 314 | 4.11 1,909,521,921 2,061,971,386
5. Accrued expenses 315 216,219,455 377,655,783
6. Other current payables 319 1,234,117,148 1,285,312,148
7. Current loans 320 | 4.12 3,560,053,000 7,202,500,000
8. Bonus and welfare fund 322 399,613,230 406,613,230
Il. Non-current liabilities 330 13,672,628,522 16,700,109,953
1. Other non-current payables 337 | 4.13 10,461,251,765 10,461,251,765
2. Non-current loans 338 | 412 - 3,560,053,000
3. Non-current provisions 342 | 414 3,211,376,757 2,678,805,188
D. OWNER'S EQUITY 400 164,311,944,598 99,004,152,659
. Equity 410 | 4.15 164,311,944,598 99,004,152,659
1. Owner's contributed capital 411 128,340,000,000 88,340,000,000
Ordinary shares carrying voting rights 411a 128,340,000,000 88,340,000,000
2. Share premiums 412 32,380,000,000 -
3. Investment and development fund 418 18,205,427,084 18,205,427,084
4. Retained earnings 421 (14,613,482,486) (7,541,274,425)
Beginning accumulated retained earnings 421a (7,641,274, 425) (13,383,495,153)
Retained earnings of the current year 421b (7,072,208,061) 5,842,220,728
TOTAL RESOURCES (440 = 300 + 400) 440 202,785,604,356 | 185,416,416,702

Tran Anh Dien
General Director

Dong Nai, 07 March 2025

Prepared by

Le Thi Hong
Accountant

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street (formerly National Highway 1K),
Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

INCOME STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 02 - DN

Expressed in VND

ITEMS Code| Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
1. Revenue 1 5.1 94,510,130,009 | 118,791,005,650
2. Netrevenue 10 94,510,130,009 118,791,005,650
3. Cost of sales 11 52 78,144,426,028 | 100,726,607,180
4. Gross profit 20 16,365,703,981 18,064,398,470
5. Finance income 21 17,890,399 2,304,892,147
6. Finance expense 22 1,060,341,483 1,732,681,518
Of which, interest expense 23 1,060,341,483 1,727,334,600
7. Selling expense 25 53 2,005,124 324 2,885,896,765
8. General and administrative expense 26 54 12,728,107,006 12,120,504,608
9. Operating profit 30 590,021,567 3,630,207,726
10. Other income 31 2,068,517,026 2,343,889,756
11. Other expense 32 5.8 9,730,746,654 131,876,754
12. Net other income 40 (7,662,229,628) 2,212,013,002
13. Accounting profit before tax 50 (7,072,208,061) 5,842,220,728
14. Current corporate income tax expense 51 57 - -
15. Net profit after tax 60 (7,072,208,061) 5,842,220,728
16. Basic earnings per share 70 [4.15.5 (760) 661
17. Diluted earnings per share 71 [4.155 (760) 661
Approved by Prepared by
|| pAUTUXAY DUN {/
i VA VATLIE x
\, DONG NA
5
Tran Anh Dien Le Thi Hong
General Director Accountant
Dong Nai, 07 March 2025
7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street (formerly National Highway 1K),
Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 03 - DN

Expressed in VND

ITEMS Code| Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Net profit /(loss) before taxation 01 (7,072,208,061) 5,842,220,728
2. Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation 02 3,993,175,833 4,638,927,486
Provisions 03 5.6 1,182,215,466 1,604,448,950
Gains/losses from investment 05 (224,384,473) (2,830,356,036)
Interest expense 06 1,060,341,483 1,727,334,600
3. Operating profit /(loss) before adjustments to
working capital 08 (1,060,859,752) 10,982,575,728
Increase or decrease in accounts receivable 09 (2,501,214,035) 3,498,211,965
Increase or decrease in inventories 10 (751,384,088) (4,064,482,076)
Increase or decrease in accounts payable
(excluding interest expense and CIT payable) 11 (41,118,604,026) (4,775,663,011)
Increase or decrease prepaid expenses 12 965,227,469 436,413,376
Interest paid 14 (1,060,341,483) (1,727,334,600)
Other cash outflows from operating activities 174 (7,000,000) (199,600,000)
Net cash from operating activities 20 (45,544,175,915) 4,150,121,382
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Acquisition and construction of fixed assets
and other non-current assets 21 (1,197,807,178) (1,496,100,142)
2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and
other non-current assets 22 206,494,074 525,463,889
3. Loans to other entities and payments for
purchase of debt instruments of other entities 23 (200,000,000) -
4. Proceeds from sales of investments in other entities 26 - 4.350,706,152
5. Interest and dividends received 27 14,499,714 4,785,995
Net cash from investing activities 30 (1,176,813,390) 3,384,855,894
(See the next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 138, Quarter 1, Nguyen Ai Quoc Street (formerly National Highway 1K),
Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 03 - DN

Expressed in VND

ITEMS Code| Notes Year 2024 Year 2023

lll. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

1. Proceeds from issuing stocks and
capital contribution from owners 31 | 4.15.3 72,800,000,000 -

2. Proceeds from borrowings 33 6.1 7,000,000,000 -

3. Repayment of borrowings 34 6.2 (14,202,500,000) (7,465,000,000)
Net cash from financing activities 40 65,597,500,000 (7,465,000,000)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
(50 = 20+30+40) 50 18,876,510,695 69,977,276
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 60 4,639,067,192 4,569,089,916
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (70 = 50+60+61) 70 4.1 23,515,577,887 4,639,067,192

Approved by

General Director

Dong Nai, 07 March 2025

Prepared by

Le Thi Hong
Accountant

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom — Happiness
No. Xs /TTr-DNC Dong Nai, day #| month® year 2025
PROPOSAL

Regarding the 2024 profit distribution plan
And the 2025 profit distribution plan

To: General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17th, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock
Company,

- Pursuant to Resolution No. 55/NQ.DHPCD-DNC dated April 8, 2024, issued by the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders for consideration and approval of the following matter:

1. Profit Distribution Plan for 2024

. Value (Million
No. Item Ratio VND)
1 Net Profit after corporate income tax in 2024 (7.072)
2 Allocations to reserves 0% 0
% Carrying forward the remaining after-tax 7072
° profit of 2024 after fund allocation. (4.092)
- Retained earnings from previous years (7.541)
5 Dividend distribution 0% 0
6 Retained earnings carried forward to the next (14.613)
year
2. Profit Distribution Plan for 2025
No. Details Ratio Val““;Nﬂ‘l‘)[;"i"“
1 Net Profit after corporate income tax in 2025 1.003
2 Retained earnings from previous years (14.613)
3 Allocations to reserves 0% 0
4 Dividend distribution 0% 0
el : :
5 ;{: afme earnings carried forward to the next (13.610)
Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.
Sincerely.
.. O/B DIRECTORS
Recipients: AN
- As above; :

- Archived: Files. ' DAUTUXAY DUNG , ,

VAVATLIEU (




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIET NAM

INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
No.: Xb /TTr-DNC Dong Nai, day (% month #} year 2025
PROPOSALS

Regarding the salaries of executives, the salaries and remuneration of the Board
of Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the Secretary of the Board of Directors
for 2024 and the plan for2025.

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock
Company;

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
for approval the salaries of executives, as well as the salaries and remuneration of the
Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the Secretary of the Board of Directors, as
follows:

1. Report on the salaries of executives for 2024.

No. Full name Position Payment (VND)
General Director
1 | Tran Anh Di 25.424.
ren . (Appointed on 05/12/24) >:424.029
General Director
2 | Tran Anh D .. 347.214.
ren R (Dismissed on 05/12/24) SHhlA530
) Deputy General Director
3 |HuynhT H .839.
S LG Sl (Appointed on 24/12/24) HiEE8IE
, ) Deputy General Director
4 | Pham Thai Hoai H .000.
am that Hoat Huong (Dismissed on 01/10/24) H0
5 | Nguyen Tien Toan Deputy General Director 301.700.000
6 | Nguyen Tu Loan Chief Accountant 280.987.000

(0]

- Salaries and Remuneration of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board,
and Secretary of the Board of Directors for 2024.
- Salary of the full-time Chairman of the Board of Directors from January to April
2024 is: 95,114,000 VND.
- Salary of the full-time Head of the Supervisory Board from April 2024 is:
208,945,000 VND.
- Remuneration fund for non-executive managers: 396.000.000 VND.

Plan Actual
(VND/person/month) | (VND/person/month)

No. Position

Concurrent Chairman of the
1 | Board of Directors from April 5.000.000 5.000.000
2024




Plan Actual

No. Position
(VND/person/month) | (VND/person/month)

Member of the Board of
2 . 5.000.000 5.000.000
Directors

Concurrent Head of the
Supervisory Board from 5.000.000 5.000.000
January — April 2024

(V8]

Member of the Supervisory

4 4.000.000 4.000.000
Board
Secret f the Board of

g || AR 4.000.000 4.000.000

Directors

3. Salary and remuneration plan for the Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board, and Board Secretary in 2025.

The provisional salary and remuneration for the Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board, and Board Secretary in 2025 are as follows:

- The monthly provisional salary for the full-time Head of the Supervisory Board
is 22.000.000 VND/month and is determined to be equivalent to the Chief Accountant's
salary.

- Remuneration for non-executive managers:

+ Chairman of the Board of Directors: 5.000.000 VND/month.

+ Board members: 5.000.000 VND/person/month.

+ Supervisory Board members: 4.000.000 VND/person/month.
- Remuneration for the Board Secretary: 4.000.000 VND/month.

Based on the business performance results of 2025, the actual salary fund for the full-
time Head of the Supervisory Board and the actual remuneration for the Board of Directors
and the Supervisory Board will be settled in accordance with regulations.

We respectfully submit this proposal for consideration and approval by the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

Sincerely.
. . On behalf of the BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Recipients: :
- As above; ,
- Archive: Vt. i@/ ¢ PHAN
pAU TUXAY DYN

VA VATLIEU




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No.: 29 /TTr-DNC

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom — Happiness

Dong Nai, day 0Lmonth 4 year 2025

PROPOSAL

Regarding the selection of the auditing firm for the 2025 Financial Statements

To: General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17th, 2020;
- Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock

Company
- Pursuant to Decision No. 2730/QP-BTC dated November 15, 2024, issued by the
Ministry of Finance, approving the list of audit Jirms authorized to audit public

interest entities in 20235.

To conduct the audit of the 2025 financial statements of the Company in

accordance with regulations, the Supervisory Board respectfully submits to the

General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration the proposal of the following three
auditing firms to audit the 2025 financial statements:

No. Auditing firms Location
BN VIEINAMAUDITING 00 ) 2o i Frur i Trung Street, Vo Thi
I | & CONSULTING Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Ci
COMPANY LIMITED Ve Listrict.3, Ho Cio.Manh Gty
12A Floor, 319 Corporation Building, No.
VACO AUDITING :
2 63 Le Van Luong Street, Trung Hoa Ward,
COMPANY LIMITED Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
A&C AUDITING AND ’
3 | CONSULTING COMPANY ]032i f‘ﬁ“:’“}% S‘ér}‘l.sﬁ‘?’e; gard 2% ot Bl
i LIMITED strict, Ho Chi Minh City

The Supervisory Board respectfully requests the General Meeting of Shareholders
to authorize the Board of Directors to negotiate and select one of the above audit firms
to conduct the 2025 financial statement audit, in compliance with current regulations.

Respectfully submitted./.

Recipients:

- As above;

- Archived: Files, BOS_._

O/B. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

HEAD OF THE BOARD

/W

HO THI MINH TAM




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

INVETSMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom— Happiness
No.: ¥ /TTr-DNC Dong Nai, day® month ¥ year 2025
PROPOSAL

Re: The Modification and Supplementation of Company Logo and Product Logo

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock
Company.

To enhance the value and brand recognition of Dong Nai Material & Building
Investment Joint Stock Company (DNC), as well as to improve the professionalism and
competitiveness of the Company, the Board of Directors respectfully submits to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval the proposal to modify
and supplement the Company logo and Product logo, as follows:

1. Adjustment and addition of Company Logo, Brick Product Logo

Proposed new logo
No. Item Current logo adjustment and
supplementation.

.

1 | Company Logo ’ DN

MEMBER OF SONADEZ

L2 P e Y 5
. P . . .y
2 | Brick Product Logo % I GACH BONG NAI R SoEHBONGHA)

. ¥ SAN PHAM CTIA DNC - TGN GROUP

SAN PHAM cUA DNC

The new logos after being modified will be implemented as part of the Company’s
brand identity system and will be uniformly applied across all official documents,
contracts, products, marketing materials, and media channels owned by Dong Nai Material
& Building Investment Joint Stock Company.

2. Authorization for the Board of Directors

To ensure flexibility in implementation, the General Meeting of Shareholders grants
authorization to the Board of Directors to amend the Company's Charter to align with the
new logo. The amendments will be limited to aspects related to brand identity and will not
affect shareholders' rights.

Submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

Respectfully submitted.

IRECTORS

Recipients:
- As above;
- Archived: Files.




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No.: 23 /TTr-DNC

THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Dong Nai, day ¥} month# year 2025

PROPOSAL

Re: Adjustment of the plan for using proceeds from the private placement of shares

To : The General Meeting of Shareholders

Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the
Government detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock
Company;

Pursuant to Resolution No. 55/NQ.DHDPCD-DNC dated April 8, 2024, of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (enclosed with Proposal No. 69/TTr-DNC
dated March 29, 2024); Resolution No. 59/NQ.DHPCD-DNC dated July 18, 2024, of the
General Meeting of Shareholders (by written opinion collection);

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Resolutions No. 68/NQ-HPQT-DNC dated
September 23, 2024; No. 77/NQ-HPQT-DNC dated December 4, 2024; and No. 89/NQ-
HPQT-DNC dated March 27, 2025, regarding the adjustment of the plan for the use of
proceeds from the private placement of shares.

The Board of Directors respectfully reports and submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders the adjustment to the utilization plan for the proceeds from the private
placement of shares, specifically as follows:

1. Adjustment of the plan for using proceeds from the private placement

Pursuant to Resolution No. 55/NQ.DHDCD-DNC dated April &, 2024, of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (enclosed with Proposal No. 69/TTr-DNC
dated March 29, 2024), and Resolution No. 59/NQ.DHDPCD-DNC dated July 18, 2024,
of the General Meeting of Shareholders (by written opinion collection), which approved
the private placement of shares, the plan for using the proceeds, and the results of the
private placement, the Company has utilized the proceeds from the offering (VND 72,8
billion) according to the plan approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, as

follows:
Planned Reason
Capital nise Amount | Remaining f(.“:
approved unutilized
used to unused
; under proceeds
No. Purpose of capital use . date amount
Resolution No. e 11
59/NQ- (million (million
PHDPCP-DNC | '\P) F)
(million VND)
1 Pay.mept of outstanding government 34 843 30478 4365 *)
obligations.
Payment of bank loans, payables to
2 | suppliers, other due obligations, 37.957 28.387 9.570 *
additional investment in fixed assets,




Planned Reason

sHpital wse Amount | Remaining ﬁ?‘:
approved unutilized
. under Hged to uased proceeds
No. Purpose of capital use Wasakiiog N date amount
59/NQ- " | (million (million
PHDCD-DNC ¥RE) Yo
(million VND)
and working capital for business
operations.
Total 72.800 58.865 13.935

(*) DNC Company has deployed the proceeds from the share offering in accordance with the intended
purpose and the offering plan approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.
However, due to the longer-than-expected process of obtaining approval for the offering, some capital utilization
items have been balanced and paid using the Company's operating cash flow.

For the remaining unused proceeds from the offering (VND 13,935 million), in
order to align with the actual situation and ensure efficient capital utilization, the Board
of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval of the adjustment to the plan for using the proceeds, as
detailed below:

Planned
No Purpose of capital use IO utilization
) (million VND) e

timeline

Additional working capital for business operations;

Payment of outstanding government obligations; :

1 | Payment of bank loans, payables to suppliers, and 13.935 Efogsgetzzl 01§5Q2
other due obligations; Payment of project
management costs and construction costs.
Total 13.93%
2. Authorization from the General Meeting of Shareholders to the Board of

Directors

Based on the adjusted plan for utilizing the proceeds from the private placement as
outlined above, the General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes and assigns the Board of
Directors the authority to determine the detailed capital utilization plan, including making
necessary adjustments to the capital allocation in accordance with the actual situation, if
deemed necessary, and reporting to the General Meeting of Shareholders at the nearest
meeting. The Board of Directors shall proactively and appropriately allocate the actual
proceeds from the offering to the purposes stated in this plan or other purposes, provided
that such allocations do not cause any harm to the Company.

Submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Respectfully submitted.

O/B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients: :
o ERAL AN
- As above; - .
- Archived: Files. 1/ COPHAN
PAUTUXAY DUN |

VA VATLIEU



DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

INVETSMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom— Happiness
No.: &4 /TTr-DNC Dong Nai, day ] month ™ year 2025
PROPOSAL

Re: Amendments and Supplements to the Company's Charter, Internal Corporate
Governance Regulations, and Board of Directors' Operational Regulations

To : The General Meeting of Shareholders

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
Pursuant to the Amended Law No. 03/2022/QH15 dated January 11, 2022;

Pursuant to the current Charter, Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance and
Operating Regulations of the Board of Directors of Dong Nai Construction Investment and
Materials Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of

Shareholders for consideration and approval the amendments and supplements to [/ .

the Company’s Charter, Internal Corporate Governance Regulations, and Board of
Directors’ Operational Regulations, specifically as follows:

1. Amendments and Supplements to the Company's Charter, Internal Corporate

Governance Regulations, and Board of Directors' Operational Regulations

- Details of amendments and supplements: As outlined in the attached appendix.

- Reason: To ensure compliance with the current legal regulations;

-Effective date: The amended and supplemented contents of the Charter and
regulations shall take effect immediately after approval by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

2. Authorization for the Board of Directors

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes and assigns the Board of Directors
to review, revise, finalize, and officially issue the amended Charter and regulations in
accordance with the contents approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and

approval.
Respectfully submitted.
. O/B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Recipients: . 'RMAN
- As above; '

- Archived: Files.

?/ _CO PHAN
DAU TUXAY DY}
VA VATuEUaG
\."6, DONG NAI
DN\
Ny




APPENDIX: AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE COMPANY’S CHARTER AND REGULATIONS
(Attached to Proposal No.34./TTr-DNC dated #.£4/2025 of the Board of Directors)

No. A&Hg;ﬁ’ CURRENT CONTENT AMENDED/SUPPLEMENTED CONTENT EXPLANATION
I Company Charter
Article 1. Interpretation of Terms Article 1. Interpretation of Terms
1. In this Charter, the following terms shall 1. In this Charter, the following terms shall be
be understood as follows: understood as follows:
Amended b. “Enterprise Law” refers to the b. “Enterprise Law” refers to the Enterprise
. Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, as Updated legal
Point b, ¢ .
Clayse 1. 17, 2020; amended and supplemented by Law No. referetices
Article 1 c. “Law on Securities” refers to the Law on 03/2022/QH1S5 dated January 11, 2022;
Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November c. “Law on Securities” refers to the Law on
26,2019; Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26,
2019, as amended and supplemented by Law No.
56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;
Clarifies that the
Company is only
n. “Contact address of shareholders” refers to the ShEEHNE M
Supplemented : . gt documents to
. address of shareholders in the consolidated list of
Point n, ' " . " o shareholders based on
Not available securities holders provided by the Vietnam Securities .
Clause 1, D " d Clearing C " t th ; the address provided
Article 1 epository and Clearing Corporation at the mos by the Vietnam
recent time. i ;
Securities Depository
and Clearing
Corporation.
Article 20. Conditions for Approval of Article 20. Conditions for Approval of Revised in accordance
Amended Shareholders’ General Meeting Resolutions Shareholders’ General Meeting Resolutions with Clause 5, Article
iﬁilislz ‘}2’0 3 1. Resolutions of the Shareholders’ General 1. Resolutions of the Shareholders’ General 33(;2(1;261;/[(5\]}—?.15 dated

Meeting on the following matters shall be passed
if approved by at least 65% of the total votes of

Meeting on the following matters shall be passed if
approved by at least 65% of the total votes of all

January 11, 2022.




ARTICLE
No. L CURRENT CONTENT AMENDED/SUPPLEMENTED CONTENT EXPLANATION
CLAUSE
all shareholders attending the meeting: shareholders present and voting at the meeting:
3. Except for the cases stipulated in 3. Except for the cases stipulated in Clauses 1 and 2 of
Clauses 1 and 2 of this Article, resolutions of the this Article, resolutions of the Shareholders” General
Shareholders’ General Meeting on other matters Meeting on other matters sohall be passed when
shall be passed when approved by more than 50% approved by more than 50% o.f the total votes.of all
of the total votes of all shareholders attending the shareholders present and voting at the meeting.
meeting.
Article 29. Board of Directors Meetings Article 29. Board of Directors Meetings
Amended A The notice of the Board of s TR The notice of the Board of Directors Clariﬁes. _
Clause 6 Directors meeting may be sent by paper, meeting may be sent by invitation letter, phone communication
Article 29 telephone, fax, electronic means, and must be message, email, fax, or other electronic means, met.hodsl for meeting
ensured to reach the contact address of each ensuring that it reaches the contact address of each notifications.
Board member as registered with the Company. | Board member as registered with the Company.
Article 57. Internal Dispute Resolution Article 57. Internal Dispute Resolution
2. If no mediation decision is reached 2. If no mediation decision is reached within six
within six (06) weeks from the start of the (06) weeks from the start of the mediation process, or
Amended mediation process, or if .the mediator’s decisipn is | if thfa mediator’s decision' is not a(.:ceptcd by the Facilitates legal
Clause 2, 3 not at.:cepted by thfa parties, any party may bring | parties, any party may bring the dispute to a procedures for dispute
Axticle 57 the dispute to Arbitration or the Court. competent Court. _ resolution.
3. Each party shall bear its own costs 3. Each party shall bear its own costs related to
related to negotiation and mediation procedures. negotiation and mediation procedures. The payment of
The payment of Court fees shall be made in Court fees shall be made in accordance with the
accordance with the Court’s ruling. Court's Judgment/Decision.
I Internal Regulations on Corporate
Governance
Removed Article 4. Nomination, Candidacy, Election, Article 4. Nomination, Candidacy, Election, T —
Point a, Dismissal, and Removal of Board of Directors | Dismissal, and Removal of Board of Directors it e Vvt wilh
Clause 3, Members Members he E .
Article 4 . the Enterprise Law.
3. Election process for Board of Directors 3. Election process for Board of Directors




ARTICLE/

No. CLAUSE CURRENT CONTENT AMENDED/SUPPLEMENTED CONTENT" EXPLANATION
members: members:
a. The list of candidates for the Board of Point a is removed
Directors must be approved by the General p ;
Meeting of Shareholders before the election is Folnts b and o are rermmbered as pomnts &
and b.
conducted.
Re@oved Article 6. Nomination, Candidacy, Article 6. Nomination, Candidacy, Election,
Pc}nnt & Election, Dismissal, and Removal of | Dismissal, and Removal of Supervisory Board
ir?}lsie 6 3, Supervisory Board Members Members
icle
3. Election process for Supervisory Board 3. Election process for Supervisory Board | Point a is removed as
members: members: it is inconsistent with
a. The list of candidates for the Supervisory Poinksith removed the Enterprise Law.
Board must be approved by the General Meeting I .
of Shareholders before the election is conducted. . bPomts b and ¢ are renumbered as points a
and b.
T Regulations on the Operations of the Board of
Directors
Amended ; : . . .
| Article 17. Minutes of the Board of Article 17. Minutes of the Board of Directors
C i 2. | Directors Meeting Meeting
Article 17

2. In case the chairperson and the minute
taker refuse to sign the meeting minutes, but all
other attending members of the Board of
Directors sign and the minutes include all the
required content as stipulated in points a, b, ¢, d,
d, e, g, and h of Clause 1 of this Article, the
minutes shall be valid.

2. In case the chairperson and the minute taker
refuse to sign the meeting minutes, but all other
attending members of the Board of Directors sign and
the minutes include all the required content as
stipulated in points a, b, ¢, d, d, e, g, and h of Clause 1
of this Article, the minutes shall be valid. The minutes
must clearly state the refusal of the chairperson
and the minute taker to sign. Members who sign
the minutes share joint responsibility for the
accuracy and truthfulness of the content. The
chairperson and the minute taker shall bear
personal liability for any damages caused to the

(,\\ [ ] s
\W e




No.

ARTICLE/
CLAUSE

CURRENT CONTENT

AMENDED/SUPPLEMENTED CONTENT

EXPLANATION

Company due to their refusal to sign the minutes,
in accordance with the Company's Charter and
applicable laws.




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

NVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
No.:A9 /TTr-DNC Dong Nai, day & month®| year 2025
PROPOSAL

Regarding the dismissal of a member of the Board of Directors for the term IV
(2021-2026)

To: General Meeting of Shareholders

- Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14, passed by the National
Assembly, dated June 17th, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint
Stock Company,

- Pursuant to the resignation letter of Mr. Tran Anh Dung from the position of
Member of the Board of Directors dated February 17, 2025.

Based on the resignation letter of Mr. Trin Anh Diing from the position of
Member of the Board of Directors dated February 17, 2025, the Board of Directors
respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the
dismissal of Mr. Tran Anh Diing from his position as a Member of the Board of
Directors for Term IV (2021-2026).

Submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai Material &
Building Investment Joint Stock Company for consideration and approval.

Respectfully.
O/B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients:
- As above;
- Archived: Files.




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
NVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No.: 30 /TTr-DNC Dong Nai, day % month® year 2025
PROPOSAL
Regarding the dismissal of a member of the Supervisory Board for the term
IV (2021-2026)

To: General Meeting of Shareholders

- Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14, passed by the National
Assembly, dated June 17th, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint
Stock Company;,

- Pursuant to the resignation letter of Ms. Lé Thi Yén from the position of
Member of the Supervisory Boarddated February 19, 2025.

Based on the resignation letter submitted by Ms. Lé Thi Yén on February 19,
2025, regarding her position as a Member of the Supervisory Board, the Board of
Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval
of the dismissal of Ms. Lé Thi Yén from her role as a Member of the Supervisory
Board for Term IV (2021 - 2026).

Submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai Material &
Building Investment Joint Stock Company for consideration and approval.

Respectfully.

.. O/B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Recipients:

- As above;
- Archived: Files.

VAVATLIEU




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

NVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
No.:.3) /TTr-DNC Dong Nai, day?*l month*fyear 2025
PROPOSAL

Regarding the list of candidates for additional election of
members of the Board of Directors and members of the Supervisory Board

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020,
Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint Stock
Company,

- Pursuant to Notification No. 107/TB.HPQT-DNC dated 20/03/2025 regarding the
nomination and candidacy for the additional election of members of the Board of
Directors and the Supervisory Board for Term IV (2021-2026).

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval of the list of candidates for the additional election of members
of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board for the remaining term of Term IV
(2021-2026) as follows:

1. List of candidates for the Board of Directors:

Date | Professional Form of
Bo: | el of birth | qualification I8 xombies Nomination
T, Erl)ichzleogns Nominated by Nhon
1 yoh 1976 _cer 075076017873 Trach 2 Reinforced
Trung Hieu Finance and C ta C i
Credit oncrete Corporation
2. List of candidates for the Supervisory Board:
Date Professional Form of
No.| Fullname | oo pirth | qualification | LD Bumber Nomination
. . Bachelor's Nominated by
1 Dn?h i 1994 Degree in 075194019713 Sonadezi
Nhi Uyen . "
Accounting Corporation
Submitted for the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.
Respectfully.
Recipients:
- As above;

- Archived: Files.




THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Figure 4 x 6
CURRICULUM VITAE
1. Full name: HUYNH TRUNG HIEU Gender: Male
2. Date of birth: 26/06/1976
3. Place of birth: Bien Hoa, Dong Nai
4. Citizen Identity Card Number/Passport: 075076017873 Date of issue: 31/08/2021

Place of issue: Police Department on Administrative Management of Social Order.

5. Nationality: Vietnam Ethnicity: Kinh
6. Permanent address: 53A, Block 26, Quarter 4, Buu Long Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong
Nai Province
7. Academic standard: 12/12
8. Professional qualification: Bachelor's degree in Credit finance
9. Employment history (from first job to present):
Period Work unit Position
. . . 2 Chief Accountant —
D T Joi
2000-2003 ong Nai Producing Trading Services Joint Depity Head of
Stock Company )
Accounting
2004-2005 Dong Nai Health Department Accountant
2006 Iwaki Pumps Vietnam Co., Ltd Chief Accountant
2007-2008 Vll:lh Phu General Joint Stock Corporation Peputy Gegeral
(Vitrac) Director of Finance
2009-2022 The Gioi Nha Construction Material Joint Deput.y General
Stock Company Director
Nhon Trach 2 Reinforced Concrete Chairman of the Board,
2022- present . .
Corporation General Director
Member of the Board
2022 - present DIC - Dong Tien Joint - Stock Company of Directors, General
Director
10. Other positions held in organizations (including roles as a Board Member in other

companies).
- Member of the Board of Directors - DIC - Dong Tien Joint - Stock Company.
- Chairman of the Board of Directors — Nhon Trach 2 Reinforced Concrete Corporation.

11. Information on companies where the individual currently holds positions as a
member of the Board of Directors, other titles, and any related interests:




Business
Registration

Company

Planning and
Investment of Dong
Nai Province

Dong Nai Province

No. Company Name Certificate, Date of Address Relationship
Issue, Place of
Issues
No.: 3600810322
Date of Issue: No. 1, Nhon Trach 2
Nhon Trach 2 04/05/2023 ' Industnal'Park, Road Chairman of the
1 | Reinforced Concrete Flagsgilssue 258, Hiep Phuoc Board of Directors,
Corporation Depart.ment of T, Nhan Trach General Director
Planning and District, Dong Nai
Investment of Pdng Province
Nai Province
Tax Code:
3600692809
DIC - Dong Tien First registered on : Lot 17, Road 25B, Member of the
2 | Joint - Stock OHORZ004, Nhon Trach 2 Board of Directors
Department of Industrial Park, ’

General Director

12. Shares owned: 3,020,000 shares, accounting for 23.53% of the charter capital of

DNC Company, including:

- Direct ownership: 3,020,000 shares, accounting for 23.53% of charter capital.

- Indirect ownership: ..evs e coveons shares, accouting for........

13. Benefits related to the Company and its related parties:

14. Related persons and affiliated organizations:

% charter capital.

A related person includes individuals such as: Wife, husband, biological father, biological

mother, adoptive father, adoptive mother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son, adopted child, son-
in-law, daughter-in-law, biological brother, biological sister, biological younger sibling,
brother-in-law, younger brother-in-law, sister-in-law, and younger sister-in-law of the

candidate.
Name of Legal Document, Date of Issue, ; 5
. d lati
No Organization/Individual Place of Issue Al Relauguain
Citizen Identity Card:
075151003939 53, Block 4, Buu
Date of Issue: 31/08/2021 Long Ward, Biological
1 | Ly Phung Place of Issue: Director General | Bien Hoa City, Mot1g1er
of the Police Department for Dong Nai
Administrative Management of Province
Social Order
Citizen Identity Card: C111, Block
091155007775 $16. Ouarter S
Date of Issue: 03/04/2023 | o 7 e | e
2 | Vo Thi An Place of Issue: Director General GCMOOE R orher-in-
; Bien Hoa City, Law
of the Police Department for ;
i . Dong Nai
Administrative Management of :
: Province
Social Order




No. . Ns?me of N Legal Document, Date of Issue, Kilirens Relatioship
Organization/Individual Place of Issue
Citizen Identity Card:
07518101(%85 2 BIck 26,
Date of Issue: 09/08/2021 (uzster 4, Bun
3 | Vo Thi Diem Phuong Place of Issue: Director General Fong War‘_:l’ Wife
of the Police Department for | bien Hoa City,
Administrative Management of Dong Nai
Social Order Province
Citizen Identity Card:
075203021496 934, Block 26,
Date of Issue: 09/08/2021 usctenst, B |
4 | Huynh Nhat Truong Place of Issue: Director General I.dong Wa.r(.i, BlologlcaI
of the Police Department for Bien Hoa C.1ty, Child
Administrative Management of Dong Nai
Social Order Proyince
Citizen Identity Card:
075207003708 534, Block 26,
Date of Issue: 05/04/2022 Querter-4,. Buu L
5 | Huynh Thien Bao Place of Issue: Director General I'dong War('i, Bfolofgzcal
of the Police Department for Bien Hoa C}ty, Child
Administrative Management of Dong Nai
Social Order Province
53A, Block 26,
Quarter 4, Buu
g A Long Ward, Biological
6 | Huynh Kim Khanh Not issued Bien Hoa City, Child
Dong Nai
Province
53A, Block 26,
Quarter 4, Buu
: ; Long Ward, Biological
7 | Huynh Kim Long Not issued Bien Hoa:City; Child
Dong Nai
Province
Citizen Identity Card:
075078010000
Date of Issue: 27/12/2021 Ehank Togen,
8 | Huynh Hien Nhan Place of Issue: Director General ]_Z)au‘ Tlen‘g Y(.)m?ger
of the Police Department for District, Binh Sibling
Administrative Management of Duong Province
Social Order
Citizen Identity Card:
074185001578
Date of Issue: 14/09/2021 Thanh Tuyen,
9 | Tran Thi My Nuong Place of Issue: Director General Dau Tieng Siaker-in Taw
of the Police Department for District, Binh
Administrative Management of Duong Province
Social Order
Citizen Identity Card:
10 | Huynh Tri Tin Mg Qsiz’lr]?;: ik 1523?1’11 Eounger
Date of Issue: 25/05/2022 ? Sibling
Place of Issue: Director General Long Ward,




Name of

Legal Document, Date of Issue,

N : . .
° Organization/Individual Place of Issue e Beationsiip
of the Police Department for Bien Hoa City,
Administrative Management of Dong Nai
Social Order Province
Citizen Identity Card:
075182012598 2 Blodksi,
Date of Issue: 25/05/2022 Qi'mer \:'; B(’i““
11 | Nguyen Thi Ngoc Nhung | Place of Issue: Director General ong Ward, | gister-in-law
of the Police Department for Bien Hoa Cfty’
Administrative Management of Dong Nai
Social Order Provinee
No. 1, Nhon
Business Registration Certificate Trach 2 Chairman of
No.: 3600810322 Industrial Park, the Board of
15 Nhon Trach 2 Reinforced Date of Issue: 04/05/2023 Road 25B, Hiep D'rectorso
Concrete Corporation Place of Issue: Department of Phuoc Town, (1} 1’
Planning and Investment of Nhon Trach cneea
Dél’lg Nai Province District, Dong Director
Nai Province
7
Tax Code: 3600692809 ok iﬁﬁid Member of
. ; First registered on : 03/08/2004, - the Board of
DIC - Dong Tien Joint - . Trach 2 >
16 Department of Planning and ; Directors,
Stock Company . Industrial Park,
Investment of Dong Nai . General
. Dong Nai :
Province ¢ Director
Province

[ affirm that the above statements are true and take full responsibility for the stated

contents.

v vuuwnn., date....month
DECLARANT

year 2025

Huynh Trung Hieu




THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Figure 4 x 6
CURRICULUM VITAE
1. Full name: Dinh Thi Nhi Uyen  Gender: Female
2. Date of birth: 14/03/1994
3. Place of birth: Dong Nai
4. Citizen Identity Card Number/Passport: 075194019713 Date of issue: 12/08/2021

Place of issue: Director General of the Police Department for Administrative
Management of Social Order.

5. Nationality: Vietnam Ethnicity: Kinh
6. Permanent address: 63/2, Quarter 6, Tan Hoa Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
Province

Academic standard: 12/12
Professional qualification: Bachelor’s degree in Accounting

9. Employment history (from first job to present)

Period Work unit Position
11/2015-12/2015 | Human Resources & Administration | Administrative Staff (Intern)
Department - Dong Nai Material &
Building Investment Joint - Stock
Company (DNC)
1/2016-4/2016 | Human Resources & Administration | Official Administrative Staff
Department — DNC Company

4/2016-12/2024 | Concrete Enterprise — DNC Company Operations Staff
12/2024 —Nay | Human Resources Department — DNC | Human Resources Staff
Company

10. Other positions held in organizations (including roles as a Board Member in other
companies).

11. Information on companies where the individual currently holds positions as a member of
the Board of Directors, other titles, and any related interests:




Business
Registration
No. Company Name Certificate, Date of Address Relationship
Issue, Place of
Issues

12.Shares owned: ..........cccoeenene shares, accouting for ........ % of the charter capital
of DNC Company, including:
s Direct OWREESIHPL v onminnsnns shares, accounting for........ % of charter capital.
- Indirect ownership? o shares, accouting for........ % of charter

capital.

13. Benefits related to the Company and its related parties

14. Related persons and affiliated organizations:

A related person includes individuals such as: Wife, husband, biological father, biological
mother, adoptive father, adoptive mother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son, adopted child, son-
in-law, daughter-in-law, biological brother, biological sister, biological younger sibling,
brother-in-law, younger brother-in-law, sister-in-law, and younger sister-in-law of the

candidate.
Name of
g z D Relati
No. | Organization/Indi Legal Document, Date of Issue, Addiea e a_tlon
" Place of Issue ship
vidual
Citizen Identity Card: 075093020980 Ars G Hinlek: Bac
Neuyen Quoc Date of Issue: 20/8/2021 Son Commune. Tran
1 guy Place of Issue: Director General of the ¥ s « € | Husband
Thinh . N Bom District, Dong
Police Department for Administrative : ;
: Nai Province
Management of Social Order
An Chu Hamlet, Bac
; T .
o | NeuyenDinhBao | o vcation : 075321018310 SonCommune; TENg | oy
Chau Bom District, Dong
Nai Province
An Chu Hamlet, Bac
Nguyen Dinh Nhu . Son Commune, Trang y
3 tification : 240079 R 1d
Thao Identification : 0753 73 Bisis Distiiot; Dong Chi
Nai Province
; Passport : C5028530 13370 Lake Point . .
Nguyen Thi : Biol |
4 Dﬁnyen L Date of Issue :16/4/2018 BLVD Belleville ;;i;a
g Place of Issue: Immigration Department MI 48111-2286
Citizen Identity Card: 075088021556 63/2, Quarter 6, Tan
: Date of [ssue: 27/2/2024 :
Dinh Ngoc Hoang . Hoa Ward, Bien Hoa Older
5 Place of Issue: Director General of the ) 5
Tu . o City, Dong Nai Brother
Police Department for Administrative Peoviics
Management of Social Order
Citizen Identity Card: 075195018237 63/2, Quarter 6, Tan Sisterds
6 | VuThi Thuy Tien | Date of Issue: 17/5/2021 Hoa Ward, Bien Hoa = -
Place of Issue: Director General of the City, Dong Nai




Police Department for Administrative Province
Management of Social Order
Citizen Identity Card: 075090021562 It_513/2, Quzrt;r 6, 'Il:Ian
. Date of Issue: 2/11/2023 oa Ward, Bien Hoa
7 gzln;:lgNgOC Homg Place of Issue: Director General of the Cltﬁf/’,r(]))voigseNal B?(l)fl?(rer
Police Department for Administrative
Management of Social Order
Citizen Identity Card: 075198013792 63/2, ngrter 6, Tan
— Date of Issue:12/6/2022 Hoa Ward, Bien Hoa | =~
8 Eguyen Thi K Place of Issue: Director General of the City, Dong Nai Sl?fer_m—
ae Police Department for Administrative Province e
Management of Social Order
Citizen Identity Card: 075194005737 63/2, Quarter 6, Tan
; : Date of Issue: 12/8/2021 Hoa Ward, Bien Hoa
9 glllnh LELEy Place of Issue: Director General of the City, Dong Nai Qlder
uyen Police Department for Administrative Province sister
Management of Social Order
Citizen Identity Card: 036067011093 irries Bl P
; R i Son Commune, Trang | Father-in-
10 | Nguyen Van Bien | Place of Issue: Director General of the P ISong law
Police Department for Administrative Nai Province,
Management of Social Order
Citizen Identity Card: 036169016380 oy Basziler, B
. . Date of Issue :20/8/2021 T —— Mot
11 | Dinh Thi Mo Place of Issue: Director General of the L .
Police Department for Administrative Bof“ D]SFrmt’ Dong neLAw
Management of Social Order S
I affirm that the above statements are true and take full responsibility for the stated
contents

..., date...month..... year 2025
DECLARANT




DONG NAI MATERIAL & BUILDING THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
INVESTMENT JOINT - STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Dong Nai, day 04 month ?| year 2025

REGULATION
ON THE ADDITIONAL ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS / SUPERVISORY BOARD

This regulation on the additional election of members of the Board of Directors (BOD)
and members of the Supervisory Board (SB) at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Dong Nai Material & Building Investment Joint - Stock Company (DNC) shall
be implemented as follows:

I. Election Content

1. Additional election of members to the Board of Directors.
2. Additional election of members to the Supervisory Board.
II. Criteria and Conditions to Become a Member of the BOD or SB

1. Criteria and conditions to become a member of the Board of Directors: Comply with
Article 155 of the Enterprise Law and relevant legal regulations and the Company’s
Charter.

2. Criteria and conditions to become a member of the Supervisory Board: Comply with
Article 169 of the Enterprise Law and relevant legal regulations and the Company’s
Charter.

III. Election Process

shall be conducted in accordance with Clause 3, Article 148 of the Enterprise Law 2020.
1. Number of Members to be Elected
- Number of BOD members to be elected: 01 member.
- Number of SB members to be elected: 01 member.
The list of nominated and self-nominated candidates (referred to as nominees) must
comply with the Enterprise Law and the Company’s Charter.
2. Ballot Content
- Ballots must state the full name and number of shares owned, total number of votes.
- Ballots will be sealed by DNC Company and distributed by the Organizing Committee
at the General Meeting,.
- The list of candidates for BOD and SB will be arranged in alphabetical order by name,
including full names as listed on the ballot.
3. Voting Method:

- Total number of votes: Each shareholder has a total number of votes equivalent to the
number of shares owned multiplied by the number of members to be elected (1 for BOD; 1

for SB).




- Shareholders have the right to allocate all their total votes to 01 or multiple candidates,
or use only part of their total votes for one or several candidates;

4. Voting Procedure

- Each shareholder/authorized representative attending the meeting will receive 01
ballot for the Board of Directors and 01 ballot for the Supervisory Board.

- To vote for a candidate, shareholders must write the number of votes in the box to the
right of that candidate’s name, ensuring the total number of votes for all candidates does not
exceed their total voting rights.

- In case of a mistaken or incorrect selection, the shareholder must contact the
Organizing Committee to request a new ballot and submit the old one.

- Ballots must be placed into the ballot box before the vote-counting process begins.

5. Valid and Invalid Ballots

- Valid ballots: Are ballots issued by the Organizing Committee and in which the total
number of votes for candidates does not exceed the shareholder’s total number of votes.

- Invalid ballots are those falling into the following cases:

+ Ballots not in the format issued by the Organizing Committee;
Ballots not signed by the shareholder;
Ballots with names crossed out or with additional names not on the candidate list.

Ballots exceeding of the shareholder’s total voting rights.

+ 4+ 4+ 4

Torn or erased ballots.

+ Ballots with no number of votes written for any candidate. ’%
6. Election Results :
The candidate for BOD or SB with the highest number of valid votes will be elected!NG ;

In case multiple candidates receive an equal number of votes, the resolution will fﬁh

the procedure outlined below:
- The candidate who owns or represents a higher number of shares will be selected.

- If the number of shares owned or represented is equal, a re-vote will be held among
those candidates.

This regulation takes effect once it is approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Recipients:
- As above;
- Archived: Files.
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